
 

Meeting contact Matthew Pawlyszyn on 01257 515034 or email matthew.pawlyszyn@chorley.gov.uk 

 
 
 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
Thursday, 28th January 2021, 6.30 pm 
Microsoft Teams Call in (audio only) +44 20 3321 5257 Conference ID: 740 
791 263  
 

Agenda 
  

Apologies 
 

1 Minutes of meeting Thursday, 1 October 2020 of Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee   

 

(Pages 3 - 8) 

2 Declarations of Any Interests 
 

 

 Members are reminded of their responsibility to declare any pecuniary interest 
in respect of matters contained in this agenda. 
 
If you have a pecuniary interest you must withdraw from the meeting. Normally 
you should leave the room before the business starts to be discussed. You do, 
however, have the same right to speak as a member of the public and may 
remain in the room to enable you to exercise that right and then leave 
immediately. In either case you must not seek to improperly influence a 
decision on the matter. 

 

 

3 Public Questions 
 

 

 Members of the public who have requested the opportunity to ask a 
question(s) on an item on the agenda will be asked to put their question(s) to 
the Committee.  Each member of the public will be allowed to ask one 
supplementary question within his/her allocated 3 minutes.   

 

 

4 Performance Panel Minutes 
 

(Pages 9 - 16) 

 To consider the Overview and Scrutiny Performance Panel minutes of the 
meetings held on 8 October, and 19 November 2020 (enclosed). 

 

 

5 Executive Cabinet Minutes 
 

(Pages 17 - 32) 

 To consider the Executive Cabinet minutes of the meetings held on 15 
October, 12 November, 10 December 2020 (enclosed). 

 

 

6 Notice of Executive Decisions 
 

(Pages 33 - 82) 

 To view the latest notice of Executive Decisions click here:  
 
https://democracy.chorley.gov.uk/mgListPlanItems.aspx?PlanId=916&RP=115 
. 

 

https://democracy.chorley.gov.uk/mgListPlanItems.aspx?PlanId=916&RP=115


The document is also attached and correct as of 20 January 2021. 

 
7 Adoption of Estates Update 
 

 

 Ray Bennett, Principal Officer for Highways and Transport from Lancashire 
County Council will be attending the meeting to provide an update on 
adoptions and answer any questions from Members. 

 

 

8 Budget Scrutiny 
 

(Pages 83 - 
100) 

 To receive and consider the report of the Deputy Director of Finance. The 
Executive member for Resources will be present at the meeting to answer any 
questions the Committee may have.  

 

 

9 Health Scrutiny 
 

(Pages 101 - 
104) 

 To consider the Work Plan of Lancashire County Council’s Health Scrutiny 
Committee. The Council’s representative on the Committee, Councillor 
Margaret France, will give a verbal update.  

 

 

10 Reports from the Task and Finish Groups 
 

 

 Sustainable Public Transport Task and Finish Group  
 
To receive a verbal update on the inquiry from the Chair, Councillor Kim 
Snape. 

 

 

11 Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme 
 

 

 To consider the Scrutiny Work Programme for 2020/21 

 
 

12 Any urgent business previously agreed with the Chair   
 

 

 

Gary Hall  

Chief Executive 
 
Electronic agendas sent to Members of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee Councillor 
John Walker (Chair), Councillor Roy Lees (Vice-Chair) and Councillors Peter Gabbott, 
Yvonne Hargreaves, Hasina Khan, Marion Lowe, Matthew Lynch, June Molyneaux, Steve Murfitt, 
Debra Platt, Gillian Sharples, Paul Sloan and Kim Snape.  
 

If you need this information in a different format, such as larger print or 
translation, please get in touch on 515151 or chorley.gov.uk 
 



Overview and Scrutiny Committee Thursday, 1 October 2020 

 
 
 
MINUTES OF OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 
MEETING DATE Thursday, 1 October 2020 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:  Councillor John Walker (Chair), Councillor Roy Lees 

(Vice-Chair) and Councillors Peter Gabbott, 
Yvonne Hargreaves, Alex Hilton, Marion Lowe, 
Matthew Lynch, June Molyneaux, Debra Platt, Paul Sloan 
and Kim Snape 

 
OFFICERS:  Zoe Whiteside (Service Lead - Spatial Planning), 

Carolyn Williams (Local Plan Coordinator), 
Angela Barrago (Service Lead - Communities), 
Matthew Pawlyszyn (Democratic and Member Services 
Officer) and Nina Neisser (Democratic and Member 
Services Officer) 

 
OTHER MEMBERS:  Councillor Margaret France 
 
 

20.OS.88 Minutes of meeting Thursday, 2 July 2020 of Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee 
 
Decision: That the minutes of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee held on 2 
July be approved as a correct record for signature by the Chair. 
 

20.OS.89 Declarations of Any Interests 
 
There were no declarations of interest received. 
 

20.OS.90 Public Questions 
 
There were no public questions for consideration. 
 

20.OS.91 Executive Cabinet Minutes 
 
Decision - That the minutes of the Executive Cabinet meeting held on 30 July be 
noted. 
 

20.OS.92 Notice of Executive Decisions 
 
Members of the Committee considered the Notice of Executive Decisions for 
September 2020 which gave notice of key and other major decisions Executive 
Members are expected to make. The Notice is review on a regular basis to ensure that 
it is up to date and fit for purpose. 
 

Agenda Page 3 Agenda Item 1



Overview and Scrutiny Committee Thursday, 1 October 2020 

The Chair believed that it was positive to see so many decisions made during such a 
difficult time which reflected the efficiency of the Council.  
 
Members queried the acquisition of the old Alker Lane Bridge over the railway and 
questioned if it was owned by the council. It was agreed that officers would look into 
this. 
 
Decision- That the Notice of Executive Decisions be noted. 
 

20.OS.93 Health Scrutiny 
 
Councillor Margaret France, as Chorley Council’s representative for Lancashire 
County Council’s Health Scrutiny updated Members on the recent LCC Health 
Scrutiny Steering Group meeting.  
 

At the meeting on 15 September, the main focus was on the current situation 
regarding the re-opening of Chorley’s Emergency Department, the 111 first system, 
adult social can and winter preparations, test and trace, and the flu vaccine 
programme. 
 
A decision was made on 21 September to not reopen Chorley’s Emergency 
Department due to difficulties in recruiting staff. One consultant had been appointed so 
far and seven of the ten required middle grades had also been appointed. It was 
understood that a review would take place in December with a view to reopen in the 
New Year. 
 
Discussions were held with regards to the 111 first system which would ensure 
emergency calls were assessed over the phone or internet triage in the first instance. 
It was hoped that this service would allow emergency departments to run smoother, 
reduce waiting time in A&E Departments, and prevent the further spread of Covid-19. 
Plans were in place for this to be rolled out in the North West at the end of November. 
Call-takers would receive mandatory six-week training, followed by supervision from 
clinical staff at the base in Bolton. 
 
With regards to adult social care and winter preparations Members discussions had 
been held about preventing the spread of infection within care homes and it was 
proposed that staff would be tested weekly and residents monthly. Test and Trace was 
also the subject of a long discussion, particularly around the lack of available testing 
the region. Finally, with regards to the flu vaccination programme for 2021, it was 
intended to extend the vaccine to also include all adults aged 50-64 however this was 
highly dependent on supply. 
 
Following queries, it was clarified that most people who were infected with Covid-19 
would be managed at home, and the ones that required respiratory care would go to 
Preston Hospital. In relation to notifying a patient if their appointment was to be 
delayed, it was not known if there were any systems in place for this but it was likely 
that there would be occasions of waiting if there were high prioritised patients. 
 
Members condemned the concept of booking an appointment for A and E and 
recognised that 111 were call handlers not trained in patient care and were without 
any knowledge of the patent and their background. 
 
Decision – that the update be noted.  

Agenda Page 4 Agenda Item 1



Overview and Scrutiny Committee Thursday, 1 October 2020 

 
20.OS.94 Air Quality Update 

 
Zoe Whiteside, Service Lead for Spatial Planning presented a verbal update on air 
quality. Members were informed that work was underway for a draft Air Quality 
Strategy and acknowledged that there had been delays due to Covid-19, and staffing. 
Within the draft Air Quality Strategy, there were links to climate change, 
measurements for air quality and plans to coordinate across Lancashire to measure 
and set a baseline for targets.  
 

After the Council declared a Climate Emergency in November 2019, work was 
designed to include a tree planting scheme, address local spaces, and the recruitment 
of Climate Change Coordinator to implement the strategy and action plan. Members 
were advised that the Draft would be taken to CLT in November before going out for 
consultation in the New Year.  
 
Carolyn Williams, Central Lancashire Local Plan Co-ordinator, added that the delay of 
the Environment Bill in the House of Commons also attributed to the delay, but they 
intended to move forward with more specific targets for particulate matter 2.5. Central 
Government were exploring targets but were not ready to commit to the 10mg target 
but have existing targets in place for 2022 to be delivered by 2032.  
 
PM 2.5 was 20.2% of emissions related to road transport. At present, Chorley does 
not have any obligation to create and meet air quality targets but the Council was 
voluntarily demonstrating its commitment to the Air Quality Strategy and Climate 
Change Emergency.  
 
More information about Chorley specifically was available on Lancashire County 
Council’s website and it was agreed that this would be shared with Members. The 
biggest issue facing Chorley was nitrous oxide due to the close proximity of the 
motorways. In 2018, the motorways contributed to 60-70 tons of nitrous oxide.  
 
Members queried the locations of the monitoring areas in the borough.  It was 
understood that Chorley had six monitoring stations, the exact locations of these 
would be provided to Members after the meeting. Three of the stations showed levels 
slightly above what was desired, but below the levels required for Air Quality 
Management Areas, and in 2020 the three have shown a decrease. The data would 
be used to help policy, and to be part of future planning applications.  
 
Members were curious as to whether there would be an impact on outside dining 
areas close to roads, in particular the A6 bypass in the Town Centre. It was clarified 
that the distance from the road where it was likely to have outside dining would result 
in low levels, and there were also landscaping buffers put in place to create 
separation.  
 
In response to a query from the Chair regarding the role of local schools and the Air 
Quality Strategy, Members were advised that schools would be reflected in the Air 
Quality Strategy Plan. It was recognised that a number of authorities had projects in 
place to encourage more active measures to prevent drop off and pick up air pollution, 
including no car zones and park and walk, although these had not been popular. It 
was agreed that community engagement and engagement with schools was required 
to raise awareness of air quality issues and promote the Air Quality Strategy.   
 

Agenda Page 5 Agenda Item 1



Overview and Scrutiny Committee Thursday, 1 October 2020 

Decision – That the update be noted. 
 

20.OS.95 Leisure Contract 
 
Angela Barrago, Service Lead for Communities provided Members with a verbal 
update on the Leisure Contract. Members were reminded of the work that had been 
undertaken on the Leisure Centre Contract since 2017. The procurement process and 
award of contract had been delayed due to Covid-19 which resulted in the preferred 
bidder, Life Leisure reluctantly withdrawing their bid in September. 
 

As a result, at the General Purposes Committee on 16 September, Members took the 
decision to bring the service in house for the short term and prepare for the longer 
term. Due to the transfer of operator, there needed to be a closure period at the leisure 
centres from the 30 September to 12 October. This would allow the opportunity to 
clean up the sites, replace lost equipment and bring in new equipment. A TUPE 
process had been undertaken as current staff would be employed by the Council 
going forward. The phone lines were to be reopened, with new software to be 
developed and commissioned to update the booking system. Letters had been sent to 
all members to keep them up to date and information issued via social media 
channels.  
 
Members were advised that consideration was given to approach the second and third 
placed bidders, but the conditions of the procurement were now different, and the 
process would need to be restarted. 
 

Cllr June Molyneaux left the meeting at 19:25pm. 
 

Councillor Bev Murray, Executive Member for Early Intervention expressed her 
disappointment at the situation but commended Life Leisure for being open and 
honest about being unable to take on the contract, and had provided advice to help 
get the leisure centres back up and running smoothly.  
 
Members queried the plans going forward, if there was the possibility that the leisure 
centres would remain in-house if successful and if consideration had been given about 
expanding in-house operations to other management contracts such as Duxbury Golf 
Club. Officers advised that a minimum period of six months was required to examine 
the market and seek professional advice to understand the position the industry was 
in. Members were advised that the contract with Glendale at Duxbury Golf Club was 
slightly different. 
 
Following concerns with the timescales and the situation exposing the council to risk 
with other contractors in the future, Members were advised that Life Leisure had not 
signed the contract at the time they withdrew. The procurement process was on 
schedule until the impact of Covid caused delays which resulted in postponing the 
award of contract to June. However, Members were reassured that this was the most 
sensible course of action. 
 
The Chair thanked Angela Barrago for attending and gave his thanks to the council 
and all officers involved for their work on this. 
 
Decision - That the update be noted.  
 

20.OS.96 Reports from the Task and Finish Groups 

Agenda Page 6 Agenda Item 1



Overview and Scrutiny Committee Thursday, 1 October 2020 

 
Councillor Kim Snape, Chair of the Overview and Scrutiny Task Group on Sustainable 
Public Transport, provided Members with a verbal update.  
 

At the first meeting, James Hoskinson (Planning Assistant) delivered a presentation in 
relation to the Sustainable September Campaign completed by the council last year. 
This explored the findings of how staff travelled to work and gathered views and 
opinions about transportation to work. This campaign would be undertaken again to 
explore the changes in 12 months and how the commute had been impacted with 
Covid-19. It was expected that the increase in home working would be a significant 
factor.  
 
A Scoping Document would be created to include the task group to focus within the 
wide-ranging topic to produce realistic aims. There were suggestions about rail 
provision, bus services,  community transport options such as dial-a-ride, as well as 
recognising the difficulties the council has in enforcing issues around public transport, 
the cost implications with public transport and what sustainable funding for buses is 
available. Work also proposed to tackle social isolation across the borough and 
environmental concerns such as air quality. The scoping document would also include 
the potential stakeholders for the review and how they would be consulted.   
 
Some members attended a Local Government Association webinar on the 
decarbonisation of transport, and the role of public transport. An update on this would 
be provided at the next session.  
 
Decision – That the update be noted. 
 

20.OS.97 Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme 
 
The Committee considered the work programme of the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee, Performance Panel, and task group topic areas for 2020/21. 
 

Members discussed the work programme and queried why the Adoption of Estates 
had not been included on the agenda as indicated on the plan. The Chair confirmed 
that it was due to be on the agenda but the relevant LCC Officer was unable to attend, 
therefore it would be taken to the next meeting in January 2021. Any information 
provided before that date would be distributed to the Members.  
 
Decision – That the work programme be noted. 
 

20.OS.98 Any urgent business previously agreed with the Chair 
 
There was no urgent business.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
Chair Date  
 

Agenda Page 7 Agenda Item 1



This page is intentionally left blank



Overview and Scrutiny Performance Panel Thursday, 8 October 2020 

 
 
 
MINUTES OF OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PERFORMANCE PANEL 
 
MEETING DATE Thursday, 8 October 2020 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:  Councillor John Walker (Chair), Councillor  (Vice-Chair) 

and Councillors Roy Lees, Alex Hilton, Marion Lowe and 
June Molyneaux 

 
OFFICERS:  Asim Khan (Director (Customer and Digital)), 

Matthew Pawlyszyn (Democratic and Member Services 
Officer), Nina Neisser and Rebecca Aziz-Brook 
(Transformation Programme Coordinator) 

 
OTHER MEMBERS:  Councillor Adrian Lowe 
 
 

20.OSP.33 Minutes of meeting Thursday, 5 March 2020 of Overview and Scrutiny 
Performance Panel 
 
Decision – That the minutes of the Overview and Scrutiny Performance Panel 
held on 5 March 2020 be approved as a correct record for signature by the 
Chair. 
 

20.OSP.34 Declarations of Any Interests 
 
There were no declarations of interest received. 
 

20.OSP.35 Performance Focus - Customer and Digital 
 
The Chair welcomed Asim Khan, Director of Customer and Digital and Councillor 
Adrian Lowe, Executive Member for Customer, Advice and Streetscene Services to 
the meeting. 
 
Asim Khan thanked members for the invitation to the Performance Panel and 
presented his report which provided contextual information with regards to the overall 
Directorate summary including the budget position, the key performance summary for 
2020/21 and an update on key projects within the directorate.  
 
The performance of the Customer and Digital directorate was last considered by the 
Overview and Scrutiny Performance Panel in June 2019. The Customer and Digital 
directorate portfolio included the following council service areas: 
 

 Planning 

 Customer transformation 

 Streetscene 

 ICT 

Agenda Page 9 Agenda Item 4



Overview and Scrutiny Performance Panel Thursday, 8 October 2020 

Members noted that due to Covid-19, the first quarter had been challenging but the 
council continued to transform and improve its services for residents. Under the 
circumstances, Quarter 1 was a good performance, which reflected the hard work and 
dedication of all officers who completed day to day service for the people of Chorley.  
 
There had been significant investment into ICT in 2019 and 75% of the Digital Strategy 
had been delivered. This allowed the council to operate successfully during the Covid 
lockdown, with officers working from home and continuing to respond to demands for 
services.  
 
Since the lifting of lockdown, Streetscene services have restarted by successfully 
delivering grass cutting, street sweeping and weed treatments as well as the 
installation of wildflower meadow sites. The service was exceeding targets for the first 
Quarter. There had also been an increase in fly tipping during lockdown, and the 
cases were being worked through with prosecutions intended. 
 
Planning had outperformed their target in quarter one and following Member queries, it 
was advised that the success was due to a combination of factors which included the 
commitment of the officers, more demand to build homes, and efficiencies in staffing 
changes.  
 
In response to a question by the Chair, Members were advised that the Council have 
committed to more green space, with more wildflower and wildlife corridors to support 
biodiversity and to provide more colour and greenery to the borough. These had been 
successful in the main, but the council was reviewing this constantly and addressing 
residents’ concerns. Councillor Molyneaux reported that the wildflower meadows had 
been popular in her ward and she had received a lot of positive feedback from 
residents. It was suggested that notices be put in place to inform residents that the 
area had not been abandoned and that the growth was for the purpose of wildlife.  
 
Members queried if the change in service of the bins was made by the Council or the 
contractor. It was explained that the service contractor was committed to undertake a 
review and alongside a third-party route optimisation provider came up with the best 
routes for efficiency.  
 
Following further queries regarding precautions in place to mitigate any further issues 
relating to Covid-19, Members were reassured that the Council was well placed to 
respond to Covid-19 and the investment in ICT enabled communication with residents, 
Officers and Members. It was recognised, however, that the overall response was 
highly dependent on the national government position.  
 
In response to a query from the Chair regarding the decrease in Council Tax 
collection, Members were advised that this was due to a combination of factors. The 
Council suspended recovery action during the first three months of the pandemic to 
assist those residents struggling financially which subsequently resulted in a decrease 
in collections compared to 2019. 
 
Councillor Adrian Lowe thanked all the staff for their work during the Covid Crisis. He 
highlighted that the budget for Customer and Digital was underspending by £32k 
which created a 0.5% variance against the original cash budget. He reiterated that the 
council would adopt a business plan accordingly to Covid-19 throughout the winter 
period.  
 

Agenda Page 10 Agenda Item 4



Overview and Scrutiny Performance Panel Thursday, 8 October 2020 

The Chair thanked Asim Khan and Councillor Adrian Lowe for their attendance and 
thanked staff for all of their work during difficult circumstances. 
 
Decision: That the Report be noted. 
 

20.OSP.36 Progress Update Business Planning 2020/21 
 
The Performance Panel considered a monitoring report from the Deputy Chief 
Executive which provided an update on the progress of the delivery of service level 
projects outlined in the service business plans. Rebecca Aziz-Brook, Transformation 
Programme Co-ordinator presented the report. 
 
A review of 15 business plans produced earlier in the year had been completed based 
on the information provided within the MyProjects system as well as meetings with 
officers and managers across services. The plans identified an overall total of 190 
projects and of those:  
 

 130 are ongoing (68.4%)  

 18 are complete (9.5%)  

 26 are on hold (13.7%) 

 16 are not started (8.4%) 

Members noted that the majority of the projects across all service areas were ongoing. 
Most of these had identified completion dates for the end of the financial year or would 
continue to be delivered over the next year as they were inked to wider programmes of 
work. Highlights of the work included;  
 

 Service recovery following the Covid-19 outbreak e.g. grass cutting, street 

sweeping, weed treatments 

 Business Grant Scheme and Hardship Fund have been completed. 

 An online tool to manage time credits has been commissioned  

 Phase two of Making Tax Digital was finalised. 

 Shared Services Phase 1 was delivered, including the successful creation of 

new shard Terms and Conditions and the completion of tailored development 

reviews with all shared services staff. 

 
There were twelve projects that had been put on hold due to delays with decision 
making, funding issues and external factors delaying progress. Actions were in place 
to ensure delivery recommenced as soon as possible. 
 
There were ten projects that had not been started, this was mainly due to having start 
dates that commence later in the year as they were dependent on other activities 
being completed first. It was anticipated that all projects were to be completed March 
2021 and so there would be no detrimental impact on overall business improvement 
delivery.  
 
Members praised the success of Chorley Live online. They queried the progress of 
King George V Playing field as well as the status of Primrose Gardens which was 
recorded as not started. It was agreed that an update would be provided to both 
Members and the contractors in relation to the playing fields and the status of 

Agenda Page 11 Agenda Item 4



Overview and Scrutiny Performance Panel Thursday, 8 October 2020 

Primrose Gardens was in relation to the open days for new residents which due to 
social distancing measures meant that the process had been put on hold.  
 
The Chair enquired about the increase of burials at Chorley and Adlington cemeteries, 
in particular, if there was an increase in demand or if there was a backlog. It was 
confirmed that contingency plans were in place due to Covid which had managed to 
keep this in the threshold meaning there had been no surge and demand was in line 
with previous years.  
 
Decision: That the report be noted.  
 

20.OSP.37 Any urgent business previously agreed with the Chair 
 
There was no urgent business.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
Chair Date  
 

Agenda Page 12 Agenda Item 4



Overview and Scrutiny Performance Panel Thursday, 19 November 2020 

 
 
 
MINUTES OF OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PERFORMANCE PANEL 
 
MEETING DATE Thursday, 19 November 2020 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:  Councillor John Walker (Chair) and Councillors Roy Lees, 

Alex Hilton, Marion Lowe and June Molyneaux 
 
OFFICERS:  Chris Sinnott (Deputy Chief Executive), Victoria Willett 

(Service Lead - Transformation and Partnerships) and 
Nina Neisser (Democratic and Member Services Officer) 

 
OTHER MEMBERS:  Councillor Peter Wilson 
 
 

20.OSP.38 Minutes of meeting Thursday, 8 October 2020 of Overview and Scrutiny 
Performance Panel 
 
Decision – That the minutes of the Overview and Scrutiny Performance Panel 
held on 8 October 2020 be approved as a correct record for signature by the 
Chair. 
 

20.OSP.39 Declarations of Any Interests 
 
There were no declarations of interest received. 
 

20.OSP.40 Performance Focus - Policy and Governance 
 
The Chair, Councillor John Walker, welcomed Chris Sinnott, Deputy Chief Executive, 
and Councillor Peter Wilson, Deputy Executive Leader and Executive Member 
(Resources), to the meeting. 
 
Councillor Peter Wilson presented the report which provided contextual information 
with regards to the overall Directorate summary, including the budget position and the 
key performance summary and key project update for 2020/21. 
 
The Policy and Governance directorate was last considered by the Overview and 
Scrutiny Panel in January 2020. The directorate incorporates a number of services 
including; governance, shared financial services, transformation and partnerships and 
communications and visitor economy. 
 
Members noted that the Policy and Governance directorate has led on delivering 
phase one of shared services. It was reported that the new shared services started 
working together on 1 April and have benefitted from the increased resilience offered 
by a larger, more diverse workforce, particularly when responding to the Covid-19 
pandemic.  
 

Agenda Page 13 Agenda Item 4



Overview and Scrutiny Performance Panel Thursday, 19 November 2020 

Members had previously held concerns regarding the Terms and Conditions, however 
they were reassured that there had been numerous consultation opportunities for staff. 
Shared Service employees had adopted the new terms and conditions which were 
agreed by both councils in July. 
 
Following queries on the terms and conditions, it was reiterated to Members that the 
new terms and conditions applied only to Shared Service staff at this time, and as 
more employees entered into the shared service they would also adopt the new terms 
and conditions. There was no plan at the moment for all Chorley Council staff to go 
under the new terms and conditions but this would be kept under review. 
 
Overall performance for 2020/21 had been good. For key corporate projects, there 
were four projects that fell under the Policy and Governance directorate, with all four of 
these performing on target for quarter two. For key service level performance, overall 
there were 38 indicators; 24 (63%) were performing on or above target, 3 (8%) were 
performing worse than target but within the threshold and 11 (29%) were performing 
below target. Members recognised the indicators that were off target which related to 
visitors to events or attractions and website visitors for these events or attractions and 
understood the impact Covid-19 had had on this. 
 
The directorate budget was underspending by £160k, which created a 3.5% variance 
against the original cash budget. Savings were made as part of the shared services 
and the events programme as the Covid-19 pandemic meant that many events such at 
the flower show had been taken online. 
 
In response to queries by the Chair, Members were advised that due to Covid-19 and 
working from home, shared services had happened differently than planned however 
staff had adapted well. It was understood that a couple of weeks were lost following 
this but now all staff were entirely able to work from home. 
 
With regards to the HR Policy Framework, Members were advised that this was now in 
place and staff had been consulted with along the process. Good progress had been 
made to integrate the two HR teams and no redundancies had been made. 
 
Members recognised a decrease in staff sickness absence and discussed how 
working from home had affected this. Reassurances were made that managers were 
monitoring the performance and productivity of their staff under the new ways of 
working. 
 
The Chair thanked Chris Sinnott and Councillor Peter Wilson for their attendance and 
thanked staff for all of their work, in particular with shared services during difficult 
times. 
 
Decision: That the report be noted. 
 

20.OSP.41 Quarter Two Performance Report 2020/21 
 
The Performance Panel considered a monitoring report from the Deputy Chief 
Executive which was presented to the Executive Cabinet on 12 November 2020. 
Councillor Peter Wilson advised that the report set out the performance against the 
delivery of the Corporate Strategy and key performance indicators during the second 
quarter of 2020/21, 1 July to 30 September 2020. 
 

Agenda Page 14 Agenda Item 4



Overview and Scrutiny Performance Panel Thursday, 19 November 2020 

Overall performance of key projects was excellent with 85% of the projects rated as 
green and 15% currently rated as amber; there were two action plans for the amber 
projects which were contained in the report. Performance of the Corporate Strategy 
indicators and key service delivery measures was good with 67% of Corporate 
Strategy measures and 86% of key service delivery measures performing on or above 
target, or within the 5% threshold. Those indicators performing below target had action 
plans outlined with measures to improve performance. 
 
Members discussed the report, in particular the delivery of affordable homes within the 
borough, recognising that a lot of work had been done but more was required. The 
current figures for the number of affordable homes under construction were requested 
and Members were advised that a report on the Wholly Owned Company would be 
brought before Members for consideration in due course. 
 
With regards to unemployment and the impact of Covid, Members were reassured that 
the situation in Chorley reflected the national picture. The hard work of the Business 
Engagement Team during this time was recognised and commended. 
 
Decision: That the report be noted. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Chair Date  
 

Agenda Page 15 Agenda Item 4



This page is intentionally left blank



Executive Cabinet Thursday, 10 December 2020 

 
 
 
MINUTES OF EXECUTIVE CABINET 
 
MEETING DATE Thursday, 10 December 2020 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:  Councillor  Alistair Bradley (Chair), Councillor 

Peter Wilson (Vice-Chair) and Councillors 
Beverley Murray, Graham Dunn and Adrian Lowe 

 
OFFICERS:  Gary Hall (Chief Executive), Chris Sinnott (Deputy Chief 

Executive), Asim Khan (Director (Customer and 
Digital)), Mark Lester (Director (Commercial Services)), 
Chris Moister (Director (Governance)), Andrew Daniels 
(Shared Service Lead – Communications and Visitor 
Economy), Doug Cridland (Waste Services Manager) 
and Nina Neisser (Democratic and Member Services 
Officer) 

 
APOLOGIES:  Councillors Alistair Morwood 
 
OTHER MEMBERS:  Councillors Aaron Beaver, Julia Berry, Mark Clifford, 

Gordon France, Margaret France, Danny Gee, 
Tom Gray, Yvonne Hargreaves, Alex Hilton, 
Steve Holgate, June Molyneaux and John Walker 

 
 

20.EC.227 Minutes of meeting Thursday, 12 November 2020 of Executive Cabinet 
 
Decision: That the minutes of the Executive Cabinet meeting held on 12 
November 2020 be confirmed as a correct record for signature by the Executive 
Leader. 
 

20.EC.228 Declarations of Any Interests 
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

20.EC.229 Public Questions 
 
There were no public questions. 
 

20.EC.230 Refresh of the Communications Strategy 
 
Councillor Alistair Bradley, Executive Member (Economic Development and Public 
Service Reform), presented the report of the Deputy Chief Executive which presents a 
refresh of the communications strategy and seeks approval on the strategy and 
updated media protocol. 
 

Agenda Page 17 Agenda Item 5



Executive Cabinet Thursday, 10 December 2020 

The new strategy sets out the aims, objectives, and principles the council will adopt 
and also focuses on three areas for improvement that have been identified as part of 
the team review. The priority areas consist of doing digital better to engage with our 
residents, planning and prioritising, and improving internal communications. 
 
Whilst reviewing the strategy, officers have adapted the media protocol to clarify the 
questions raised by members as to how a situation would be dealt with if there was a 
conflict of interest between both South Ribble and Chorley Council. This would be 
handled by working to the protocol for each authority and reflecting the view of each 
authority. 
 
Members supported the proposals in the report. 
 
Decision: 

1. To approve the new communications strategy. 
2. To approve the updated media protocol. 

 
Reasons for recommendation(s): 
To ensure the strategy is up-to-date. 
 
Alternative options considered and rejected: 

1. It was considered not to update the strategy, but this has been rejected to 
enable us to develop the work of the communications team. 

2. Various approaches and options have been considered as part of the team 
review of the summer and they form the basis of the new strategy. 

 
20.EC.231 Revenue and Capital Budget Monitoring 2020-21 

 
Councillor Alistair Bradley, Executive Member (Economic Development and Public 
Service Reform), presented the report of the Chief Finance Officer which sets out the 
provisional revenue and capital outturn figures for the Council as compared against 
the budgets and efficiency savings targets set for the financial year 2020/21. 
 
In summary, the projected revenue outturn currently shows a forecast in line with the 
budget for 2020/21 and the forecast of capital expenditure in 2020/21 is £21.713m. 
The Council’s budget for 2020/21 includes a savings target of £150k from 
management of the staffing establishment. Members noted that the full savings of 
£150k have been achieved and officers advised that the council is not anticipating the 
use of any reserves as the savings made have put us in a positive position. 
 
The Council’s Medium-Term Financial Strategy reported that working balances are 
currently maintained at £4.0m due to the financial risks facing the Council. The 
forecast level of general fund balances as at 31 March 2021 will be £4.0m. 
 
Members considered the impact of Covid-19, particularly for Market Walk and 
business rates. Business rates were down but reasonably strong and would continue 
to be monitored. Members paid tribute to officers and thanked them for all of hard their 
work during Covid-19 to ensure that the Council remains in a good position financially 
and discussed any possible financial risks going forward. 
 
Decision: 

1. Note the full year forecast position for the 2020/21 revenue budget and 
capital investment programme.  

Agenda Page 18 Agenda Item 5



Executive Cabinet Thursday, 10 December 2020 

2. Note the forecast position on the Council's reserves. 
3. Approve the capital programme to be delivered in 2020/21 to 2022/23. 

 
Reasons for recommendation(s): 
To ensure the Council’s budgetary targets are achieved. 
 
Alternative options considered and rejected: 
None 
 
 

20.EC.232 Approval for the contract award procedure and evaluation criteria for 
trade waste from council buildings 
 
Councillor Peter Wilson, Executive Member (Resources) presented a report of the 
Director of Customer and Digital which seeks approval for the contract award 
procedure and evaluation criteria for the two-year contract to undertake trade waste 
collections from Council buildings. 
 
The Council as a business has a duty of care to ensure any waste it produces is 
collected and disposed of correctly. This includes waste from its offices, community 
centres, leisure centres, Chorley Markets and Market Walk shopping centre. The 
current contract will end on 31 March 2021 and new arrangements need to be put in 
place. 
 
Evaluation of the tender will be on an 85% cost and 15% quality ratio. This is a routine 
procurement, so this ratio is considered reasonable. To support the council’s green 
agenda, the evaluation criteria for the quality element will include a request for bidders 
to demonstrate how they achieve efficiencies and minimise carbon emissions in their 
fleet operations. 
 
Members supported the proposals, in particular the consideration of the green agenda. 
 
Decision: 

1. To approve the contract award procedure of an open invitation to tender 
advertised on the Council’s procurement website, Chest. Tenders will be 
evaluated to establish the most economically advantageous tender based 
on 85% cost, 15% quality. 

2. To delegate to the Executive Member for Resources authority to approve 
the award of the contract to the winning bidder based upon the evaluation 
criteria. 

 
Reasons for recommendation(s): 
Under the Council’s Contract Procedure Rules approval by the Executive Cabinet for 
contract award for tenders greater than £100,000 is required. 
 
Alternative options considered and rejected: 
To not agree contract award procedure would fail to comply with the Council’s 
Procurement rules. 
 

20.EC.233 Exclusion of the Public and Press 
 
Decision: To exclude the press and public for the following items of business on 
the grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of exempt information as 

Agenda Page 19 Agenda Item 5



Executive Cabinet Thursday, 10 December 2020 

defined in Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 
1972. 
 

20.EC.234 Tatton Contractor Appointment 
 
Councillor Alistair Bradley, Executive Member (Economic Development and Public 
Service Reform) presented the confidential report of the Director of Commercial 
Services which briefs Members on the progress of work at the Tatton development 
site, and the status of the second stage tender process for the appointment of a 
design and build contractor. The report also seeks approval to award the contract for 
the design and build contractor. 
 
Members supported the proposals within the report. 
 
Decision: 
That the appointment of Robertson CE Limited is approved to allow the key 
funding milestones to be achieved and the scheme to be delivered. 
 
Reasons for recommendation(s): 

1. The execution of the building contract is an important milestone in the 
progression of the scheme, as it allows the contractor to mobilise its operations 
and prepare to commence the works on site at the beginning of February 2021. 
This commencement date is key to ensure delivery of the scheme by the end of 
March 2022, which is the backstop date stipulated as part of the ‘Getting 
Building’ grant fund award. 

2. The execution of the building contract also fixes the scope, the programme and 
the price and provides confidence that the works can be delivered in 
accordance with the approved parameters. 

3. The execution of the building contract establishes a clear risk profile. 
 
Alternative options considered and rejected: 
Delay commencement of the works to consider any further development of the design 
and costs. This is rejected as it would compromise the grant secured under the 
‘Getting Building’ fund. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Chair Date  
 

Agenda Page 20 Agenda Item 5



Executive Cabinet Thursday, 12 November 2020 

 
 
 
MINUTES OF EXECUTIVE CABINET 
 
MEETING DATE Thursday, 12 November 2020 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:  Councillor Alistair Bradley (Chair), Councillor 

Peter Wilson (Vice-Chair) and Councillors 
Beverley Murray, Graham Dunn, Alistair Morwood and 
Adrian Lowe 

 
OFFICERS:  Gary Hall (Chief Executive), Chris Sinnott (Deputy Chief 

Executive), Asim Khan (Director (Customer and 
Digital)), Mark Lester (Director (Commercial Services)), 
Chris Moister (Director (Governance)), James Thomson 
(Deputy Director of Finance), Victoria Willett (Shared 
Service Lead – Transformation and Partnerships), 
Andrew Daniels (Shared Service Lead – 
Communications and Visitor Economy), Rebecca Aziz-
Brook (Transformation Programme Coordinator), 
Howard Anthony (Performance and Partnerships 
Officer) and Nina Neisser (Democratic and Member 
Services Officer) 

 
OTHER MEMBERS:  Councillors Julia Berry, Mark Clifford, Gordon France, 

Margaret France, Danny Gee, Steve Holgate, 
Matthew Lynch, June Molyneaux and John Walker 

 
 

20.EC.221 Minutes of meeting Thursday, 15 October 2020 of Executive Cabinet 
 
Decision: That the minutes of the Executive Cabinet meeting held on 15 October 
2020 be confirmed as a correct record for signature by the Executive Leader. 
 

20.EC.222 Declarations of Any Interests 
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

20.EC.223 Public Questions 
 
There were no public questions. 
 

20.EC.224 Quarter Two Performance Report 2020/21 
 
Councillor Peter Wilson, Executive Member (Resources), presented the report of the 
Deputy Chief Executive which sets out the performance against the delivery of the 
Corporate Strategy and key performance indicators during the second quarter of 
2020/21, 1 July to 30 September 2020. 

Agenda Page 21 Agenda Item 5



Executive Cabinet Thursday, 12 November 2020 

 
Overall, the performance of key projects is excellent with 85% of the projects rated as 
green and 15% currently rated as amber; there are two action plans for the amber 
projects which are contained within this report. Performance of the Corporate Strategy 
indicators and key service delivery measures is good with 67% of Corporate Strategy 
measures and 83% of key service delivery measures performing on or above target, or 
within the 5% threshold. Those indicators performing below target have action plans 
outlined with measures to improve performance. 
 
Members discussed the report, noting the effects of Covid-19 on performance, 
particularly in relation to the Town Centre and businesses. Members were encouraged 
to direct any businesses who are struggling during lockdown to the relevant officers. It 
was agreed that a note be sent out to Members with information on the stay at home 
grants to help advise any residents queries. 
 
Decision: 
To note the report. 
 
Reason for Recommendation(s): 
To facilitate the on-going analysis and management of the Council’s performance in 
delivering the Corporate Strategy. 
 
Alternative options considered and rejected: 
None. 
 

20.EC.225 Update on and contract award for Astley Hall conservation work 
 
Councillor Peter Wilson, Executive Member (Resources), presented the report of the 
Deputy Chief Executive which updates Members on the progress of the conservation 
work at Astley Hall and seeks approval for delegated powers to award the contract for 
the main works following a competitive tender process. 
 
The main work proposed to the hall includes the removal of the render on the front of 
the hall and the replacement of the windows and window frames, improving the visitor 
route, and repairs to the cottage roof. As part of the work the council also proposes to 
create a museum shop and information centre. 
 
Other work that has taken place or is due to take place in the coming months includes; 
additional car parking spaces created with the extension of Hallgate car park, repair 
works to the footpath around the perimeter of the playing fields, lighting scheme for the 
main footpath through the park and funding set aside for the renovation of Ackhurst 
Lodge and the creation of a new attraction. 

 
The main work to the Hall has been delayed due to the Covid-19 pandemic and a new 
programme has therefore been agreed. Members noted the key milestones to ensure 
that the work be completed ready for re-opening in July 2021.  
 
Members supported the proposals in the report and discussed the options available if 
the original brick was in a poor state following the removal of the render.  
 
Decision: 

1. To note progress on the project and timescale for completion. 

Agenda Page 22 Agenda Item 5



Executive Cabinet Thursday, 12 November 2020 

2. To ratify the procurement approach that was approved by executive member 
decision in Appendix E and F. 

3. To delegate powers to award the contract for the main works to the Executive 
Member for Resources based on the competitive tender process. 

 
Reasons for recommendation(s) 

1. To ensure members are fully informed of progress on this project and ensure a 
decision is taken on the contract award in line with our formal procedures. 

2. The decision on how the tender would be undertaken was taken by Executive 
Member Decision due to the amended timescales and to get the project back 
on track. The process needs to be ratified by Executive Cabinet in order to 
allow delegated powers for the contract award once the tenders have been 
returned and reviewed.  
 

Alternative options considered and rejected: 
No alternative options have been considered as the contract award requires 
ratification from Executive Cabinet to delegate the decision to the executive member 
to keep the project on track. The decision to undertake the work has already been 
agreed as part of the corporate strategy. 

 
20.EC.226 Public Spaces Protection Order - Renewals 

 
Councillor Bev Murray (Early Intervention) presented the report of the Deputy Chief 
Executive which sets out the renewal process for the council’s current Public Spaces 
Protection Orders (PSPO’s) which have been in place for three years. 
 
Following the introduction of the Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014, 
the Public Spaces Protection Orders were introduced to replace the Dog Control 
Orders (DCO’s) and Designated Public Place Orders (DPPO’s), Chorley Council 
replaced these orders with the PSPO’s in November 2017. 
 
Chorley Council currently has six PSPO’s and it is proposed to extend five of the 
Orders and vary and extend one Order. Members supported the proposals. 
 
Decision: 

1. Executive Cabinet support the extension of the current PSPO’s and extends the 
Red Edged Map (original and proposed attached) on the Town Centre PSPO to 
include ASDA, Bolton St. 

2. Delegated power to Director of Governance to amend as appropriate the 
wording of the orders. 

 
Reasons for recommendation(s): 
To extend the current orders which gives Authorised Officers powers to use the 
PSPO’s in the specific circumstances of the Orders and address the problematic 
behaviour efficiently and effectively. 
 
Alternative options considered and rejected: 

1. Not to extend the PSPO’s, however due to the problematic behaviour that the 
PSPO’s cover it is proportionate and appropriate to consider that problems 
would re-occur / occur if the PSPO’s were not in place and Council Officers 
would have difficulty to address these behaviours without the Orders in place. 

2. Not to vary the Town Centre Map to include ASDA, Bolton Street. Currently the 
Town Centre PSPO does not include ASDA, Bolton St. However, there has 

Agenda Page 23 Agenda Item 5



Executive Cabinet Thursday, 12 November 2020 

been ongoing problems with begging within the town centre and when 
individuals have been approached and removed from within the PSPO area, 
they have moved to the ASDA Store. We have worked with the Supermarket, 
however the onus has been on them to remove the individuals which they have 
had difficulty with. Therefore, if the PSPO covered the store there would be an 
additional enforcement option that could be used to address the problem. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Chair Date  
 

Agenda Page 24 Agenda Item 5



Executive Cabinet Thursday, 15 October 2020 

 
 
 
MINUTES OF EXECUTIVE CABINET 
 
MEETING DATE Thursday, 15 October 2020 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:  Councillor Peter Wilson (Chair), and Councillors 

Beverley Murray, Graham Dunn, Alistair Morwood and 
Adrian Lowe 

 
OFFICERS:  Chris Sinnott (Deputy Chief Executive), Mark Lester 

(Director (Commercial Services)), James Thomson 
(Deputy Director of Finance), Dave Whelan (Shared 
Service Lead - Legal), Victoria Willett (Shared Service 
Lead – Transformation and Partnerships), 
Rebecca Aziz-Brook (Transformation Programme 
Coordinator), Rachel Salter (Service Lead - 
Development and Business), Katherine Greenwood 
(Planning Policy and Housing Officer), 
Ruth Rimmington (Democratic and Member Services 
Team Leader) and Nina Neisser (Democratic and 
Member Services Officer) 

 
APOLOGIES:  Councillor Alistair Bradley 
 
OTHER MEMBERS:  Councillors Aaron Beaver, Julia Berry, Mark Clifford, 

Gordon France, Margaret France, Danny Gee, 
Tom Gray, Yvonne Hargreaves, Alex Hilton, 
Steve Holgate, June Molyneaux, Kim Snape and 
John Walker 

 
 

20.EC.210 Minutes of meeting Thursday, 30 July 2020 of Executive Cabinet 
 
Decision: That the minutes of the Executive Cabinet meeting held on 30 July 
2020 be confirmed as a correct record for signature by the Executive Leader. 
 

20.EC.211 Declarations of Any Interests 
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

20.EC.212 Public Questions 
 
There were no public questions. 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Page 25 Agenda Item 5



Executive Cabinet Thursday, 15 October 2020 

20.EC.213 Tatton Development 
 
Mark Lester, Director of Commercial Services, presented his report which presents the 
list of shortlisted options for the name for the Tatton development and the process for 
how the name will be chosen.  The report also presents the draft eligibility criteria for 
the extra care element of the scheme. 
 
The Tatton development, including the extra care apartments is due to commence 
construction in January 2021, with completion by March 2022.  To allow the council to 
effectively promote the development there is a need to agree a name for the 
development and agree to an allocation policy to allocate the apartments in a fair and 
transparent way. 
 
Due to the nature of the accommodation and the provision of the extra care element, it 
is necessary to incorporate the view of LCC and agree a series of priorities in order to 
comply with Homes England grant conditions. 
 
Members supported the proposals within the report, particularly the discretion within 
the allocations policy.  It was noted that Lancashire County Council are the 
commissioning body but have not made a capital contribution to the development.   
 
Decision 
1. To agree to the proposed names for the development and the process for 
choosing a name, which involves an opportunity for residents to vote on their 
preferred name. 
2. To agree the draft allocations policy for consultation with the bodies 
identified at Paragraph 27. 
3. To delegate to the Executive Member for Homes and Housing authority to 
amend the policy following the consultation responses being considered. 
4. To delegate to the Executive Member for Homes and Housing authority to 
approve and adopt the allocations policy, in current or amended form. 
5. To delegate the signing of the S185 agreement (sewer abandonment), 
S247 agreement (stopping up order of Silverdale Road) and the S278 (road 
works) agreement to the Director of Commercial Services. 
6. To delegate the signing of the getting building funding agreement to 
Executive Member (Resources). 
 
Reasons for recommendation(s): 
1. The naming of the scheme allows the local residents to take some ownership of 
the proposed development. 
2. The allocations policy is required to ensure that the accommodation within the 
Tatton development is allocated in a fair and transparent manner. 
 
Alternative options considered and rejected: 
1. Allow the name of the scheme to be chosen by Members, this was rejected as 
this would not offer the opportunity for residents to take some ownership of the 
scheme. 
2. To use the existing select move allocations policy to allocate the apartments 
and to not develop a separate allocations policy. This was rejected as the nature of the 
Tatton development scheme means that different needs and issues need to be taken 
into consideration in prioritising the accommodation. The proposed allocation policy 
also aligns with the allocations policy for Primrose Gardens. 
 

Agenda Page 26 Agenda Item 5



Executive Cabinet Thursday, 15 October 2020 

20.EC.214 Chorley Council Registered Provider Partnership Framework 
 
Katherine Greenwood, Planning Policy and Housing Officer, presented the report of 
the Deputy Chief Executive which seeks approval to consult on the Registered 
Provider (RP) Partnership Framework. 
 
A RP Partnership Framework is a strategic partnership between a Council and the 
RPs who wish to work within their boundaries.  It sets out an agreed framework for the 
delivery of affordable homes secured through s106 agreements and can provide 
Councils with direct control of the allocation of these affordable units.  
 
It will therefore give the Council opportunity to control which RPs can secure s106 
units in the borough.  The Council is a RP so will also be able to apply to be on the 
Framework and have the opportunity to secure some of these units. 
 
It is proposed that it will be implemented in April 2021 following consultation and 
selection of partners. 
 
Members supported the proposal.   
 
Decision:  
To approve the RP Partnership Framework for consultation. 
 
Reasons for recommendation(s): 
To enable the Council to have direct control of the allocation of affordable units 
secured through s106 agreements. 
 
Alternative options considered and rejected: 
None. 
 

20.EC.215 Revenue and Capital Budget Monitoring 2020/21 Report 
 
Councillor Peter Wilson, Executive Member for Resources, presented the report of the 
Chief Finance Officer which sets out the provisional revenue and capital outturn 
figures for the Council as compared against the budgets and efficiency savings targets 
set for the financial year 2020/21. 
 
The council is in a positive position financially, but due to Covid-19, the impact on 
council tax collection and changes to the business rate retention scheme some difficult 
decisions may have to be taken in the future.  Money had been agreed and set aside 
to fund set up costs in the council taking over the running of its leisure centres.  
 
Members noted that funding for building maintenance has been reprofiled as work has 
been delayed due to Covid-19.  The Digital Office Park is now back open and 
generating income from renting office space and the meeting rooms.  Closer working 
with partners and charities to deliver some services is under review.   
 
Decision:  
1. To note the full year forecast position for the 2020/21 revenue budget and 
capital investment programme. 
2. To note the forecast position on the Council's reserves. 
3. To note the capital programme to be delivered in 2020/21 to 2022/23 
 

Agenda Page 27 Agenda Item 5



Executive Cabinet Thursday, 15 October 2020 

Reasons for recommendation(s): 
To ensure the Council’s budgetary targets are achieved. 
 
Alternative options considered and rejected: 
None. 
 

20.EC.216 Corporate Performance Framework Review 
 
Vicky Willett, Shared Service Lead - Transformation and Partnerships, presented the 
report of the Deputy Chief Executive which presents the revised Corporate 
Performance Framework for approval. 
 
A review of the Corporate Performance Framework has been undertaken. Members 
considered an overview of the revised performance management policy and the 
proposed approach to its implementation. 
 
Decision:  
To approve the Corporate Performance Framework as a shared policy 
document. 
 
Reasons for recommendation(s): 
To ensure that we have up-to-date and robust approach to performance management 
that can consistently and effectively respond to the needs of each authority across 
shared services.  Effective performance management is vital for improving outcomes 
for our communities as it provides a key mechanism for continuous service 
improvement and excellence. 
 
Alternative options considered and rejected: 
The alternative of not adopting the revised Corporate Performance Framework has 
been considered.  This would maintain current inconsistencies and limit the effective 
management of performance for both Councils. 
 

20.EC.217 Leisure Contract - Approval to use UK Leisure Procurement Framework 
 
Councillor Beverly Murray, Executive Member for Early Intervention, presented the 
report of the Deputy Chief Executive which seeks approval to use an existing UK 
Leisure Framework (Access Agreement) to deliver any capital development projects 
that may need to be conducted imminently at Leisure centres.  It also seeks approval 
for the scope of development projects to be conducted to be delegated to the 
Executive Member for Early Intervention. 
 
Following the report to General Purposes Committee in September 2020 the Council 
agreed to bring the management of the Leisure facilities in-house whilst the longer-
term options are considered. 
 
The preferred bidder had intended to use Alliance Leisure to develop and deliver 
capital development projects across the sites, utilising their experience and knowledge 
of leisure facilities development. 
 
Alliance Leisure have developed a framework which has been approved to be used by 
Local Authorities and is compliant with OJEU regulations but this framework expires in 
2021. 
 

Agenda Page 28 Agenda Item 5



Executive Cabinet Thursday, 15 October 2020 

Members supported this and noted that improvements have already been made to the 
car park at All Seasons.   
 
Decision:  
1. To approve the use of the UK Leisure Procurement Framework to conduct 
development projects at Leisure centres. 
2. To approve that the decision for the scope of the works to be conducted 
be delegated to the Executive Member for Early Intervention and approved via 
the executive member decision process. 
 
Reasons for recommendation(s): 
Use of the framework will allow any works to the centres to be deployed in effective 
timescale whilst ensuring the process is compliant with OJEU procurement 
regulations. 
 
Alternative options considered and rejected: 
1. Undertake the delivery of the projects in-house and commence a separate 
procurement process.  This was rejected as we do not have the expertise to deliver 
such projects and it would take a considerable amount of time to conduct the 
procurement exercise for a variety of services and suppliers. 
2. The ability to use the framework will expire in January 2021 therefore to delay 
submitting our intention to use the framework would mean that we would not be able 
to make use of this existing framework if we needed to commit to work before January 
2021. 
 

20.EC.218 Exclusion of the Public and Press 
 
Decision: To exclude the press and public for the following items of business on 
the grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of exempt information as 
defined in Paragraphs 1, 3 and 4 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local 
Government Act 1972. 
 

20.EC.219 Acquisition of Alker Lane, Bridge & Mossfield Nature Reserve 
 
Mark Lester, Director of Commercial Services, presented his confidential report which 
sets out the current position and proposals relating to this project.   
 
Members supported the proposals within the report, particularly with regards to the 
nature reserve.   
 
Decision:  
1. To conclude final negotiations with BAES and establish a commercial 
settlement. 
2. To continue and conclude dialogue as regards draft Heads of Terms with 
BAES and a draft Lease agreement with Network Rail. 
3. To progress dialogue with GA Petfoods to establish an agreement around 
access, use and financial contribution if practical / feasible. 
4. To progress with a CIL funding application.  
5. To commence pre-app discussions with planners to establish 
implications and requirements.  
6. To continue dialogue with LCC regarding the nature of the cycleway and 
Alker Lane, including the potential site exit onto Euxton Lane. 

Agenda Page 29 Agenda Item 5



Executive Cabinet Thursday, 15 October 2020 

7. To engage with the Alker Lane design team to progress initial design 
work regarding the cycle path and the integration of Alker Lane into the wider 
development. 
8. To delegate the final agreements with BAES, Network Rail and GA 
Petfoods to the Executive Member (Resources).  
9. To delegate the signing of the ‘getting building’ fuind agreement to the 
Executive Member (Resources).  
10. To authorise the Director of Governance to complete all necessary legal 
documents to implement the agreements approved by the Executive Member 
(Resources). 
 
Reasons for recommendation(s): 
There are a number of key benefits associated with CBC acquiring Alker Lane, Bridge 
and Nature Reserve and constructing the cycle path: 
1. Allow better connectivity by foot and bicycle between Buckshaw Avenue and 
Euxton Lane adding amenity value. 
2. Allow wider connectivity to Mossfield Nature Reserve. 
3. Improving links between Buckshaw Village and the Strawberry Fields Digital 
Hub and Alker Lane employment development. 
4. Working with local employer to allow transport connection between the existing 
and proposed employment sites. 
5. Nature reserve supporting wellbeing opportunities for local residents and 
encouraging wildlife diversity in the borough, offsetting loss of habitat as a result of 
developments elsewhere. 
6. Opportunities to increase tree planting in the borough and take advantage of 
funding opportunities in that respect. 
7. Potential to engage with the ‘Life for a Life Plan’, which provides opportunities 
for residents to pay for tree planting in remembrance. 
8. Opportunities to engage with Bio-Diversity companies who may wish to partner 
in the management of the reserve, to encourage habitat diversity. 
9. Increase the flexibility of the Alker Lane development by introducing a site exit 
onto Euxton Lane, which will provide better circulation to the scheme.  This will also 
introduce the possibility to introduce additional linear parking along the length of Alker 
Lane.  
 
Alternative options considered and rejected: 
1. Not progressing the acquisition of Alker Lane: rejected as this would potentially 
result in the risk of a 3rd party acquiring the access and compromising the Alker Lane 
development.  Not progressing the acquisition would also remove the opportunity to 
generate additional parking to support the Alker Lane development and increase 
flexibility by introducing an additional exit onto Euxton Lane. 
2. Not progressing the acquisition of the cycle route: rejected as this would 
prevent the natural extension of Alker Lane and the introduction of a pedestrian and 
cycle route to connect Euxton Lane and Buckshaw Drive. 
 

20.EC.220 Shared Services Phase 1: Service Reviews 
 
Chris Sinnott, Deputy Chief Executive, presented his confidential report which outlines 
the findings of the service reviews for phase 1 of shared services.  It also sets out the 
recommendations for each service. 
 
 
 

Agenda Page 30 Agenda Item 5



Executive Cabinet Thursday, 15 October 2020 

Decision:  
1. To approve the proposed restructures for the Transformation and 
Partnerships, Communications and Visitor Economy, and Governance services, 
as endorsed at Shared Services Joint Committee in September 2020. 
2. To approve the action plans for each of the service reviews, as endorsed 
by Shared Services Joint Committee in September 2020. 
 
Reasons for recommendation(s): 
To progress the development of a single operating model for shared services. 
 
Alternative options considered and rejected: 
Not to review the services would restrict integration and limit effective joint working. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Chair Date  
 

Agenda Page 31 Agenda Item 5



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Chorley Council – Notice of Executive Decisions  
 

1. This document gives 28 days notice of ‘key’ and other major decisions which the Executive Cabinet and Executive Members expect to take.  The 
document is updated as required and is available to the public on the Council’s website at www.chorley.gov.uk or from the Town Hall, Market Street, 
Chorley, PR7 1DP. 

 

2. A ‘Key’ Decision is defined as: 
a) Any executive decision which is likely to result in the Council incurring significant expenditure or the making of savings where there is: 

 a change in service provision that impacts upon the service revenue budget by £100,000 or more; or 

 a contract worth £100,000 or more; or 

 a new or unprogrammed capital scheme of £100,000 or more. 
b) Any executive decision which will have a significant impact in environmental, physical, social or economic terms on communities living or working 

in two or more electoral wards.  This includes any plans or strategies which are not within the meaning of the Council’s Policy Framework set out 
in Article 4 of the Council’s Constitution. 

c) Under the Access to Information Procedure Rules set out in the Council’s Constitution, a ‘Key’ Decision may not be taken, unless 28 days notice 
have been given in this document; 

d) The law and the Council’s Constitution provide for urgent key decisions to be made, even though they have not been included in this document in 
accordance with General Exception and Special Urgency provisions. 

 

3. The Executive Cabinet is made up of the Executive Leader, Deputy Leader and four Executive Members with the following portfolios: 
Executive Leader and Executive Member (Economic Development and Public Service 
Reform) 

Councillor Alistair Bradley  

Deputy Executive Leader and Executive Member (Resources) Councillor Peter Wilson  
Executive Member (Early Intervention) Councillor Beverley Murray 
Acting Executive Member (Homes and Housing) Councillor Graham Dunn  
Executive Member (Public Protection) Councillor Alistair Morwood  
Executive Member (Customer, Advice and Streetscene Services) Councillor Adrian Lowe 

 

4.  Copies of the Council’s Constitution and agenda and minutes for all meetings of the Council may be accessed on the Council’s website: 
www.chorley.gov.uk.  If there are any queries, including objections to items being considered in private, please contact the Council on 01257 515151 
or email contact@chorley.gov.uk.  Please note representations should be received 14 days before the date the decision is due to be taken.   

 

Gary Hall, Chief Executive 
Last updated: 12 January 2021 

A
genda P

age 33
A

genda Item
 6

http://www.chorley.gov.uk/
http://www.chorley.gov.uk/
mailto:contact@chorley.gov.uk


Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to be 
taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Reason the 
decision is key 

Earliest Date 
decision can 
be taken 

Will the public 
be excluded?  

Are there any 
background 
papers? 

Documents to 
be considered 
by Decision 
taker 

 

Future meetings of the Executive Cabinet where there is an intention to hold part of a meeting in private: 21 January, 25 February and 25 March 
2021 
 

January 
 

Chorley Open 
Space, Sports 
and Recreation 
Strategy Action 
Plan 2020-2036 
 

Executive 
Cabinet 

Executive 
Member 
(Economic 
Development 
and Public 
Service 
Reform) 

 21 Jan 2021 No 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Deputy Chief 
Executive 
 

Draft Budget 
2021/22 and 
Summary 
Position over 
the Medium 
Term 
 

Executive 
Cabinet 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

A new or 
unprogrammed 
capital scheme 
of £100,000 or 
more 

21 Jan 2021 No 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Statutory 
Finance Officer 
 

A
genda P

age 34
A

genda Item
 6



 
Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to be 
taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Reason the 
decision is key  

Earliest Date 
decision can 
be taken 

Will the public 
be excluded?  

Are there any 
background 
papers? 

Documents to 
be considered 
by Decision 
taker 

Approval for the 
Contract Award 
Procedure and 
Evaluation 
Criteria for ICT 
Hardware and 
Software 
 

Executive 
Cabinet 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

A contract 
worth £100,000 
or more 

21 Jan 2021 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Customer and 
Digital) 
 

Future meetings 
 

Open Space, 
Sport & 
Recreation 
Strategy 
Summary and 
Action Plan 
 

Executive 
Cabinet 

Executive 
Member 
(Economic 
Development 
and Public 
Service 
Reform) 

 25 Feb 2021 No 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Commercial 
Services) 
 

A
genda P

age 35
A

genda Item
 6



 
Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to be 
taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Reason the 
decision is key  

Earliest Date 
decision can 
be taken 

Will the public 
be excluded?  

Are there any 
background 
papers? 

Documents to 
be considered 
by Decision 
taker 

King Georges 
Playing Fields 
Pavilion - 
Proposed 
Contract Award 
Proceedure 
 

Executive 
Cabinet 

Executive 
Member 
(Economic 
Development 
and Public 
Service 
Reform) 

A contract 
worth £100,000 
or more 

25 Feb 2021 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Deputy Chief 
Executive 
 

Bengal Street 
Feasibility 
Update 
 

Executive 
Cabinet 

Executive 
Member 
(Economic 
Development 
and Public 
Service 
Reform) 

A contract 
worth £100,000 
or more 

25 Feb 2021 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Commercial 
Services) 
 

A
genda P

age 36
A

genda Item
 6



 
Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to be 
taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Reason the 
decision is key  

Earliest Date 
decision can 
be taken 

Will the public 
be excluded?  

Are there any 
background 
papers? 

Documents to 
be considered 
by Decision 
taker 

Approval of 
Tender 
Evaluation 
Criteria for 
Security/Concie
rge Services 
 

Executive 
Cabinet 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

A contract 
worth £100,000 
or more 

25 Feb 2021 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Commercial 
Services) 
 

Shared 
Services: 
Events Team 
Review 
 

Executive 
Cabinet 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

 25 Feb 2021 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Deputy Chief 
Executive 
 

A
genda P

age 37
A

genda Item
 6



 
Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to be 
taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Reason the 
decision is key  

Earliest Date 
decision can 
be taken 

Will the public 
be excluded?  

Are there any 
background 
papers? 

Documents to 
be considered 
by Decision 
taker 

Insurance 
Portfolio 
procurement 
proposals 
 

Executive 
Cabinet 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

A contract 
worth £100,000 
or more 

25 Mar 2021 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Governance) 
 

King George V 
Playing Fields, 
Adlington 
 

Executive 
Cabinet 

Executive 
Member 
(Economic 
Development 
and Public 
Service 
Reform) 

A contract 
worth £100,000 
or more 

24 Jun 2021 No 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Commercial 
Services) 
 

Queens Road 
Car Park 
Resurfacing - 
Contract award 
 

Executive 
Cabinet 

Executive 
Member 
(Economic 
Development 
and Public 
Service 
Reform) 

A contract 
worth £100,000 
or more 

24 Jun 2021 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Commercial 
Services) 
 

A
genda P

age 38
A

genda Item
 6



 
Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to be 
taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Reason the 
decision is key  

Earliest Date 
decision can 
be taken 

Will the public 
be excluded?  

Are there any 
background 
papers? 

Documents to 
be considered 
by Decision 
taker 

Wigan Lane 
Playing Field 
Facility 
 

Executive 
Cabinet 

Executive 
Member 
(Economic 
Development 
and Public 
Service 
Reform) 

A contract 
worth £100,000 
or more 

20 Jan 2022 No 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Development 
and Place) 
 

Leisure 
Contract 
Update 
 

Executive 
Cabinet 

Executive 
Member (Early 
Intervention) 

A significant 
impact in 
environmental, 
social or 
physical terms 
in two or more 
wards 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

10 Dec 2020 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Deputy Chief 
Executive 
 

A
genda P

age 39
A

genda Item
 6



 
Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to be 
taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Reason the 
decision is key  

Earliest Date 
decision can 
be taken 

Will the public 
be excluded?  

Are there any 
background 
papers? 

Documents to 
be considered 
by Decision 
taker 

Executive Member Decisions 
 

Executive Leader and Executive Member (Economic Development and Public Services Reform) 
 

Strawberry 
Fields Grant 
Programme 
Amendment 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Economic 
Development 
and Public 
Service 
Reform) 

Executive 
Member 
(Economic 
Development 
and Public 
Service 
Reform) 

 July 2020 No 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Commercial 
Services) 
 

Milestone 
Meadow Play 
Area, Euxton 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Economic 
Development 
and Public 
Service 
Reform) 

Executive 
Member 
(Economic 
Development 
and Public 
Service 
Reform) 

 July 2020 No 
 

Open Space, 
Sport & 
Recreation 
Strategy 
Summary and 
Action Plan - 
https://democra
cy.chorley.gov.
uk/mgIssueHist
oryHome.aspx?
IId=71337&Plan
Id=909&RPID=
7050336 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Commercial 
Services) 
 

A
genda P

age 40
A

genda Item
 6



 
Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to be 
taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Reason the 
decision is key  

Earliest Date 
decision can 
be taken 

Will the public 
be excluded?  

Are there any 
background 
papers? 

Documents to 
be considered 
by Decision 
taker 

Play Area 
Improvement at 
The Hawthorns 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Economic 
Development 
and Public 
Service 
Reform) 

Executive 
Member 
(Economic 
Development 
and Public 
Service 
Reform) 

 24 Aug 2020 No 
 

Open Space, 
Sport & 
Recreation 
Strategy 
Summary and 
Action Plan 
https://democra
cy.chorley.gov.
uk/mgIssueHist
oryHome.aspx?
IId=71337&Plan
Id=909&RPID=
7050336 
 

Report of the  
Deputy Chief 
Executive 
 

Lancashire 
Woodland 
Connect 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Economic 
Development 
and Public 
Service 
Reform) 

Executive 
Member 
(Economic 
Development 
and Public 
Service 
Reform) 

 August 2020 No 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Deputy Chief 
Executive 
 

A
genda P

age 41
A

genda Item
 6



 
Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to be 
taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Reason the 
decision is key  

Earliest Date 
decision can 
be taken 

Will the public 
be excluded?  

Are there any 
background 
papers? 

Documents to 
be considered 
by Decision 
taker 

Mawdesley 
Millenium 
Green Play 
Area S106 
transfer 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Economic 
Development 
and Public 
Service 
Reform) 

Executive 
Member 
(Economic 
Development 
and Public 
Service 
Reform) 

 November 2020 No 
 

Play, Open 
Space and 
Playing Pitches 
– Financial 
Transfers of 
S106 to Parish 
Councils and 
Organisations 
for Project 
Delivery - 
https://democra
cy.chorley.gov.
uk/documents/s
96662/Report.p
df 
 

Report of the  
Deputy Chief 
Executive 
 

Cripplegate 
Lane Pond 
 

Leader and 
Deputy 
Leader/Director 
Briefing 
 
Executive 
Member 
(Economic 
Development 
and Public 
Service 
Reform) 
 
CE - Corporate 
Leadership 
Team (CLT) 

Executive 
Member 
(Economic 
Development 
and Public 
Service 
Reform) 
 
 

 November 2020 
 
1 Dec 2020 

Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Deputy Chief 
Executive 
 
 
 

A
genda P

age 42
A

genda Item
 6



 
Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to be 
taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Reason the 
decision is key  

Earliest Date 
decision can 
be taken 

Will the public 
be excluded?  

Are there any 
background 
papers? 

Documents to 
be considered 
by Decision 
taker 

Westway 
Operator 
Procurement 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Economic 
Development 
and Public 
Service 
Reform) 

Executive 
Member 
(Economic 
Development 
and Public 
Service 
Reform) 

A contract 
worth £100,000 
or more 

July 2020 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Commercial 
Services) 
 

Longfield 
Avenue Play 
and Open 
Space Contract 
Award 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Economic 
Development 
and Public 
Service 
Reform) 

Executive 
Member 
(Economic 
Development 
and Public 
Service 
Reform) 

 Before 29 Jan 
2021 

No 
 

Open Space, 
Sport & 
Recreation 
Strategy 
Summary and 
Action Plan 
https://democra
cy.chorley.gov.
uk/mgIssueHist
oryHome.aspx?
IId=71337&Plan
Id=909&RPID=
7050336 
 

Report of the  
Deputy Chief 
Executive 
 

A
genda P

age 43
A

genda Item
 6



 
Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to be 
taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Reason the 
decision is key  

Earliest Date 
decision can 
be taken 

Will the public 
be excluded?  

Are there any 
background 
papers? 

Documents to 
be considered 
by Decision 
taker 

Alker Lane 
Bridge 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Economic 
Development 
and Public 
Service 
Reform) 

Executive 
Member 
(Economic 
Development 
and Public 
Service 
Reform) 

A change in 
service 
provision that 
impacts upon 
the service 
revenue budget 
by £100,000 or 
more 

July 2020 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Commercial 
Services) 
 

Alker Lane 
Development - 
Appointment of 
PM/EA/QS 
Support 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Economic 
Development 
and Public 
Service 
Reform) 

Executive 
Member 
(Economic 
Development 
and Public 
Service 
Reform) 

 January 2021 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

To follow 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Commercial 
Services) 
 

A
genda P

age 44
A

genda Item
 6



 
Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to be 
taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Reason the 
decision is key  

Earliest Date 
decision can 
be taken 

Will the public 
be excluded?  

Are there any 
background 
papers? 

Documents to 
be considered 
by Decision 
taker 

BAE Agreement 
- Alker Lane 
Bridge 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Economic 
Development 
and Public 
Service 
Reform) 

Executive 
Member 
(Economic 
Development 
and Public 
Service 
Reform) 

 December 2020 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

To follow 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Commercial 
Services) 
 

Network Rail 
Agreement - 
Alker Lane 
Bridge 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Economic 
Development 
and Public 
Service 
Reform) 

Executive 
Member 
(Economic 
Development 
and Public 
Service 
Reform) 

 December 2020 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

To follow 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Commercial 
Services) 
 

A
genda P

age 45
A

genda Item
 6



 
Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to be 
taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Reason the 
decision is key  

Earliest Date 
decision can 
be taken 

Will the public 
be excluded?  

Are there any 
background 
papers? 

Documents to 
be considered 
by Decision 
taker 

Agreement GA 
Pet Foods - 
Alker Lane 
Bridge 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Economic 
Development 
and Public 
Service 
Reform) 

Executive 
Member 
(Economic 
Development 
and Public 
Service 
Reform) 

 17 Dec 2020 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

To follow 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Commercial 
Services) 
 

Contractor 
Appointment - 
Alker Lane 
Development 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Economic 
Development 
and Public 
Service 
Reform) 

Executive 
Member 
(Economic 
Development 
and Public 
Service 
Reform) 

A contract 
worth £100,000 
or more 

21 Jan 2021 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

To follow 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Commercial 
Services) 
 

A
genda P

age 46
A

genda Item
 6



 
Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to be 
taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Reason the 
decision is key  

Earliest Date 
decision can 
be taken 

Will the public 
be excluded?  

Are there any 
background 
papers? 

Documents to 
be considered 
by Decision 
taker 

Approval to 
Agree 
Steelwork 
Modification on 
Market Walk 
Extension 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Economic 
Development 
and Public 
Service 
Reform) 

Executive 
Member 
(Economic 
Development 
and Public 
Service 
Reform) 

 July 2020 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Commercial 
Services) 
 

Tatton Second 
Stage Fee 
Expenditure 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Economic 
Development 
and Public 
Service 
Reform) 

Executive 
Member 
(Economic 
Development 
and Public 
Service 
Reform) 

A contract 
worth £100,000 
or more 

19 Nov 2020 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Commercial 
Services) 
 

A
genda P

age 47
A

genda Item
 6



 
Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to be 
taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Reason the 
decision is key  

Earliest Date 
decision can 
be taken 

Will the public 
be excluded?  

Are there any 
background 
papers? 

Documents to 
be considered 
by Decision 
taker 

Westway 
Football 
Foundation 
Submission 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Economic 
Development 
and Public 
Service 
Reform) 

Executive 
Member 
(Economic 
Development 
and Public 
Service 
Reform) 

A contract 
worth £100,000 
or more 

July 2020 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Commercial 
Services) 
 

Commercial 
Acquisition 
Opportunities 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Economic 
Development 
and Public 
Service 
Reform) 

Executive 
Member 
(Economic 
Development 
and Public 
Service 
Reform) 

A new or 
unprogrammed 
capital scheme 
of £100,000 or 
more 

July 2020 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Commercial 
Services) 
 

A
genda P

age 48
A

genda Item
 6



 
Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to be 
taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Reason the 
decision is key  

Earliest Date 
decision can 
be taken 

Will the public 
be excluded?  

Are there any 
background 
papers? 

Documents to 
be considered 
by Decision 
taker 

Rent Relief for 
Council 
Commercial 
Tenants 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Economic 
Development 
and Public 
Service 
Reform) 

Executive 
Member 
(Economic 
Development 
and Public 
Service 
Reform) 

A change in 
service 
provision that 
impacts upon 
the service 
revenue budget 
by £100,000 or 
more 

January 2021 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Commercial 
Services) 
 

That's Mine - 
Chorley BIG 
Grant 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Economic 
Development 
and Public 
Service 
Reform) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Councillor 
Alistair Bradley, 
Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

 5 Nov 2020 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Commercial 
Services) 
 

A
genda P

age 49
A

genda Item
 6



 
Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to be 
taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Reason the 
decision is key  

Earliest Date 
decision can 
be taken 

Will the public 
be excluded?  

Are there any 
background 
papers? 

Documents to 
be considered 
by Decision 
taker 

Deputy Executive Leader and Executive Member (Resources) 
 

Approval for the 
contact award 
procedure for 
the 
procurement of 
asset 
management 
software for 
streetscene 
services 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

 June 2020 No 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Customer and 
Digital) 
 

Applications to 
waive Council 
Tax Long-Term 
Empty Premium 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

 June 2020 No 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Customer and 
Digital) 
 

Application to 
Waive Council 
Tax Long Term 
Empty Premium 
- Andertons 
School House 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

 June 2020 No 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Customer and 
Digital) 
 

A
genda P

age 50
A

genda Item
 6



 
Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to be 
taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Reason the 
decision is key  

Earliest Date 
decision can 
be taken 

Will the public 
be excluded?  

Are there any 
background 
papers? 

Documents to 
be considered 
by Decision 
taker 

Harrisons Farm 
Adlington - 
Notification of 
United Utilities 
Works under 
S159 of the 
Water Industry 
Act 1991 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

 June 2020 No 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Commercial 
Services) 
 

Approval For 
Car Park 
Barrier Bengal 
Street 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

 June 2020 No 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Commercial 
Services) 
 

IHRA Definition 
of Antisemitism 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

 June 2020 No 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Governance) 
 

HR Policy 
Framework 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

 June 2020 No 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Deputy Chief 
Executive 
 

HR Policy 
Framework 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

 June 2020 No 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Deputy Chief 
Executive 
 

HR Policy 
Framework 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

 June 2020 No 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Deputy Chief 
Executive 
 

A
genda P

age 51
A

genda Item
 6



 
Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to be 
taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Reason the 
decision is key  

Earliest Date 
decision can 
be taken 

Will the public 
be excluded?  

Are there any 
background 
papers? 

Documents to 
be considered 
by Decision 
taker 

HR Policy 
Framework - 
Work-Life 
Policy Family 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

 22 Jan 2021 No 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Deputy Chief 
Executive 
 

Alker Lane - 
Appointment of 
ecological 
consultants 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

 June 2020 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Commercial 
Services) 
 

Appointment of 
a Contractor & 
PM/QS for 
Alker Lane 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

A contract 
worth £100,000 
or more 

4 Nov 2020 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

Chorley Council 
Corporate 
Strategy 
2019/20-
2021/22 
https://democra
cy.chorley.gov.
uk/documents/s
105131/Chorley
%20Council%2
0Corporate%20
Strategy%2020
1920-
202122.pdf 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Commercial 
Services) 
 

A
genda P

age 52
A

genda Item
 6



 
Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to be 
taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Reason the 
decision is key  

Earliest Date 
decision can 
be taken 

Will the public 
be excluded?  

Are there any 
background 
papers? 

Documents to 
be considered 
by Decision 
taker 

Alker and 
Tatton Funding 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Economic 
Development 
and Public 
Service 
Reform) 

A contract 
worth £100,000 
or more 

30 Sep 2020 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

Chorley Council 
Corporate 
Strategy 
2019/20-
2021/22 - 
https://democra
cy.chorley.gov.
uk/documents/s
105131/Chorley
%20Council%2
0Corporate%20
Strategy%2020
1920-
202122.pdf 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Commercial 
Services) 
 

Getting Building 
Funding - Alker 
Lane and 
Tatton 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

A contract 
worth £100,000 
or more 

December 2020 No 
 

To follow 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Commercial 
Services) 
 

Croft Lodge, 
Lodge Bank, 
Brinscall - 
Fishing Lease 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

 June 2020 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Commercial 
Services) 
 

A
genda P

age 53
A

genda Item
 6



 
Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to be 
taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Reason the 
decision is key  

Earliest Date 
decision can 
be taken 

Will the public 
be excluded?  

Are there any 
background 
papers? 

Documents to 
be considered 
by Decision 
taker 

Common Bank 
Lane Disposal 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

 June 2020 No 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Commercial 
Services) 
 

Disposal of 3 
Parking Spaces 
at Farrington 
Street Car Park 
Chorley 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

 June 2020 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Commercial 
Services) 
 

Land Rear of 50 
and 52 Fairview 
Drive Adlington 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

 June 2020 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Commercial 
Services) 
 

A
genda P

age 54
A

genda Item
 6



 
Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to be 
taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Reason the 
decision is key  

Earliest Date 
decision can 
be taken 

Will the public 
be excluded?  

Are there any 
background 
papers? 

Documents to 
be considered 
by Decision 
taker 

Approval to 
Agree Heads of 
Terms for Unit 
2, Market Walk 
Extension 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

A contract 
worth £100,000 
or more 

June 2020 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Commercial 
Services) 
 

Approval to 
Agree Heads of 
Terms for Unit 
3, Market Walk 
Extension 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

A contract 
worth £100,000 
or more 

June 2020 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Commercial 
Services) 
 

A
genda P

age 55
A

genda Item
 6



 
Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to be 
taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Reason the 
decision is key  

Earliest Date 
decision can 
be taken 

Will the public 
be excluded?  

Are there any 
background 
papers? 

Documents to 
be considered 
by Decision 
taker 

Approval to 
Agree Heads of 
Terms for Unit 
4, Market Walk 
Extension 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

A contract 
worth £100,000 
or more 

June 2020 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Commercial 
Services) 
 

Approval to 
Agree Heads of 
Terms for Unit 
5, Market Walk 
Extension 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

A contract 
worth £100,000 
or more 

June 2020 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Commercial 
Services) 
 

A
genda P

age 56
A

genda Item
 6



 
Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to be 
taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Reason the 
decision is key  

Earliest Date 
decision can 
be taken 

Will the public 
be excluded?  

Are there any 
background 
papers? 

Documents to 
be considered 
by Decision 
taker 

Approval to 
Acquire 
Individual 
Homes for 
Affordable Rent 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

A contract 
worth £100,000 
or more 

December 2020 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Commercial 
Services) 
 

Approval to 
Acquire 
Affordable 
Homes - 
property No3 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

A contract 
worth £100,000 
or more 

December 2020 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Commercial 
Services) 
 

A
genda P

age 57
A

genda Item
 6



 
Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to be 
taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Reason the 
decision is key  

Earliest Date 
decision can 
be taken 

Will the public 
be excluded?  

Are there any 
background 
papers? 

Documents to 
be considered 
by Decision 
taker 

Approval to 
Acquire 
Affordable 
Homes - 
property No4 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

A contract 
worth £100,000 
or more 

December 2020 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Commercial 
Services) 
 

Approval to 
Acquire 
Affordable 
Homes - 
property No5 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

A contract 
worth £100,000 
or more 

December 2020 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Commercial 
Services) 
 

A
genda P

age 58
A

genda Item
 6



 
Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to be 
taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Reason the 
decision is key  

Earliest Date 
decision can 
be taken 

Will the public 
be excluded?  

Are there any 
background 
papers? 

Documents to 
be considered 
by Decision 
taker 

Approval to 
Acquire 
Affordable 
Homes - 
property No6 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

A contract 
worth £100,000 
or more 

December 2020 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Commercial 
Services) 
 

Approval to 
Acquire 
Affordable 
Homes - 
property No7 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

A contract 
worth £100,000 
or more 

December 2020 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Commercial 
Services) 
 

A
genda P

age 59
A

genda Item
 6



 
Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to be 
taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Reason the 
decision is key  

Earliest Date 
decision can 
be taken 

Will the public 
be excluded?  

Are there any 
background 
papers? 

Documents to 
be considered 
by Decision 
taker 

Approval to 
Acquire 
Affordable 
Homes - 
property No8 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

A contract 
worth £100,000 
or more 

December 2020 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Commercial 
Services) 
 

Approval to 
Acquire 
Affordable 
Homes - 
property No9 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

A contract 
worth £100,000 
or more 

December 2020 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Commercial 
Services) 
 

A
genda P

age 60
A

genda Item
 6



 
Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to be 
taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Reason the 
decision is key  

Earliest Date 
decision can 
be taken 

Will the public 
be excluded?  

Are there any 
background 
papers? 

Documents to 
be considered 
by Decision 
taker 

Buzz Bingo 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

 28 Aug 2020 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Commercial 
Services) 
 

Grant of a 
Lease - 37 New 
Market Street - 
First Floor 
Above Iceland - 
Market Walk 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

 June 2020 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Commercial 
Services) 
 

A
genda P

age 61
A

genda Item
 6



 
Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to be 
taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Reason the 
decision is key  

Earliest Date 
decision can 
be taken 

Will the public 
be excluded?  

Are there any 
background 
papers? 

Documents to 
be considered 
by Decision 
taker 

Lease of 100 
Market Street 
Chorley 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

 Before 16 Dec 
2020 

Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Commercial 
Services) 
 

Lease Renewal 
- Approval of 
Terms for New 
Lease - Unit 6 
Flat Iron Parade 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

 28 Aug 2020 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Commercial 
Services) 
 

A
genda P

age 62
A

genda Item
 6



 
Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to be 
taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Reason the 
decision is key  

Earliest Date 
decision can 
be taken 

Will the public 
be excluded?  

Are there any 
background 
papers? 

Documents to 
be considered 
by Decision 
taker 

Strawberry 
Fields Digital 
Office Hub - 
Grant of a 
Lease - Office 
No 2 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

 July 2020 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Commercial 
Services) 
 

Strawberry 
Fields Digital 
Office Hub - 
Grant of a 
Lease - Office 
No 3 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

 July 2020 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Commercial 
Services) 
 

A
genda P

age 63
A

genda Item
 6



 
Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to be 
taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Reason the 
decision is key  

Earliest Date 
decision can 
be taken 

Will the public 
be excluded?  

Are there any 
background 
papers? 

Documents to 
be considered 
by Decision 
taker 

Strawberry 
Fields Digital 
Office Hub - 
Grant of a 
Lease - Office 
No 4 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

 July 2020 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Commercial 
Services), 
Director 
(Commercial 
Services) 
 

Strawberry 
Fields Digital 
Office Hub - 
Grant of a 
Lease - Office 
No 5 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

 July 2020 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Commercial 
Services) 
 

A
genda P

age 64
A

genda Item
 6



 
Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to be 
taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Reason the 
decision is key  

Earliest Date 
decision can 
be taken 

Will the public 
be excluded?  

Are there any 
background 
papers? 

Documents to 
be considered 
by Decision 
taker 

Strawberry 
Fields Digital 
Office Hub - 
Grant of a 
Lease - Office 
No 10 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

 July 2020 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Commercial 
Services) 
 

Strawberry 
Fields Digital 
Office Hub - 
Grant of a 
Lease - Office 
No 14 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

 July 2020 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Commercial 
Services) 
 

A
genda P

age 65
A

genda Item
 6



 
Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to be 
taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Reason the 
decision is key  

Earliest Date 
decision can 
be taken 

Will the public 
be excluded?  

Are there any 
background 
papers? 

Documents to 
be considered 
by Decision 
taker 

Strawberry 
Fields Digital 
Office Hub - 
Grant of a 
Lease - Office 
No 15 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

 July 2020 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Commercial 
Services) 
 

Strawberry 
Fields Digital 
Office Hub - 
Grant of a 
Lease - Office 
No 18 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

 July 2020 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Commercial 
Services) 
 

A
genda P

age 66
A

genda Item
 6



 
Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to be 
taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Reason the 
decision is key  

Earliest Date 
decision can 
be taken 

Will the public 
be excluded?  

Are there any 
background 
papers? 

Documents to 
be considered 
by Decision 
taker 

Strawberry 
Fields Digital 
Office Hub - 
Grant of a 
Lease - Office 
No 20 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

 July 2020 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Commercial 
Services) 
 

Strawberry 
Fields Digital 
Office Hub - 
Grant of a 
Lease - Office 
No 27 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

 July 2020 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Commercial 
Services) 
 

A
genda P

age 67
A

genda Item
 6



 
Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to be 
taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Reason the 
decision is key  

Earliest Date 
decision can 
be taken 

Will the public 
be excluded?  

Are there any 
background 
papers? 

Documents to 
be considered 
by Decision 
taker 

Grant of a 
Lease - Cafe - 
Primrose 
Gardens 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

 August 2020 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Commercial 
Services) 
 

UPDATE - 
Kiosk/Cafe 
Coronation 
Recreation 
Ground Chorley 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

 4 Sep 2020 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Commercial 
Services) 
 

A
genda P

age 68
A

genda Item
 6



 
Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to be 
taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Reason the 
decision is key  

Earliest Date 
decision can 
be taken 

Will the public 
be excluded?  

Are there any 
background 
papers? 

Documents to 
be considered 
by Decision 
taker 

Letting 
Arrangements - 
Hair Salon - 
Primrose 
Gardens 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

 August 2020 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Commercial 
Services) 
 

Business Grant  
Programme 
Budgets 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

 June 2020 No 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Commercial 
Services) 
 

Business 
Financial 
Support Budget 
Approval 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Economic 
Development 
and Public 
Service 
Reform) 

 July 2020 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Commercial 
Services) 
 

A
genda P

age 69
A

genda Item
 6



 
Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to be 
taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Reason the 
decision is key  

Earliest Date 
decision can 
be taken 

Will the public 
be excluded?  

Are there any 
background 
papers? 

Documents to 
be considered 
by Decision 
taker 

Lease of Cafe 
Coach House 
Astley Park 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

A contract 
worth £100,000 
or more 

September 
2020 

Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Commercial 
Services) 
 

Proposed 
Wayleave 
Agreement: 
Harrisons Farm, 
Old School 
Lane, Adlington 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

 September 
2020 

Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Commercial 
Services) 
 

A
genda P

age 70
A

genda Item
 6



 
Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to be 
taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Reason the 
decision is key  

Earliest Date 
decision can 
be taken 

Will the public 
be excluded?  

Are there any 
background 
papers? 

Documents to 
be considered 
by Decision 
taker 

Shop Front 
Grant 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

 December 2020 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

Vacant Property 
and Shop Front 
Grants - 
Programme 
Evaluation - 
https://democra
cy.chorley.gov.
uk/mgIssueHist
oryHome.aspx?
IId=44900 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Commercial 
Services) 
 

Shop Front 
Grant - 8 
Chapel Street 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Councillor Peter 
Wilson, 
Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

 17 Sep 2020 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

Vacant Property 
and Shop Front 
Grants - 
Programme 
Evaluation - 
https://democra
cy.chorley.gov.
uk/mgIssueHist
oryHome.aspx?
IId=44900 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Commercial 
Services) 
 

A
genda P

age 71
A

genda Item
 6



 
Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to be 
taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Reason the 
decision is key  

Earliest Date 
decision can 
be taken 

Will the public 
be excluded?  

Are there any 
background 
papers? 

Documents to 
be considered 
by Decision 
taker 

Shop Front 
Grant - 1-3 
Cleveland 
Street, Tea 
Shack Ltd. 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources), 
Councillor Peter 
Wilson 

 4 Nov 2020 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Commercial 
Services) 
 

Shop Front 
Grant - 227 
Eaves Lane - 
GKL Make Up 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

 8 Dec 2020 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Commercial 
Services) 
 

A
genda P

age 72
A

genda Item
 6



 
Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to be 
taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Reason the 
decision is key  

Earliest Date 
decision can 
be taken 

Will the public 
be excluded?  

Are there any 
background 
papers? 

Documents to 
be considered 
by Decision 
taker 

Shop Front 
Grant - Post 
Office. 7 Chapel 
Street 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

 25 Dec 2020 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Commercial 
Services) 
 

Shop Front 
Grant - 56 
Market Street 
(Bugle Inn 
Landlord 
application for 
RBS) 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Councillor Peter 
Wilson 

 1 Jan 2021 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Commercial 
Services) 
 

A
genda P

age 73
A

genda Item
 6



 
Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to be 
taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Reason the 
decision is key  

Earliest Date 
decision can 
be taken 

Will the public 
be excluded?  

Are there any 
background 
papers? 

Documents to 
be considered 
by Decision 
taker 

Maidens 
Ladieswear Ltd 
- Chorley BIG 
Grant 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

 3 Dec 2020 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Commercial 
Services) 
 

Whittle Surgery 
Procurement 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

A new or 
unprogrammed 
capital scheme 
of £100,000 or 
more 

June 2020 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Commercial 
Services) 
 

A
genda P

age 74
A

genda Item
 6



 
Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to be 
taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Reason the 
decision is key  

Earliest Date 
decision can 
be taken 

Will the public 
be excluded?  

Are there any 
background 
papers? 

Documents to 
be considered 
by Decision 
taker 

Whittle GP 
Surgery 
Contractor 
Procurement 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Economic 
Development 
and Public 
Service 
Reform) 

A contract 
worth £100,000 
or more 

July 2020 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Commercial 
Services) 
 

Whittle Surgery 
HoT's 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Economic 
Development 
and Public 
Service 
Reform) 

A contract 
worth £100,000 
or more 

July 2020 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Commercial 
Services) 
 

Council Tax 
Long-Term 
Empty Premium 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

 August 2020 Paragraph 1: 
Information 
relating to any 
individual. 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Customer and 
Digital) 
 

A
genda P

age 75
A

genda Item
 6



 
Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to be 
taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Reason the 
decision is key  

Earliest Date 
decision can 
be taken 

Will the public 
be excluded?  

Are there any 
background 
papers? 

Documents to 
be considered 
by Decision 
taker 

Request to 
release 
restrictive 
covenant 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

 August 2020 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Commercial 
Services) 
 

Covid 19 
Measures 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

 August 2020 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Commercial 
Services) 
 

A
genda P

age 76
A

genda Item
 6



 
Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to be 
taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Reason the 
decision is key  

Earliest Date 
decision can 
be taken 

Will the public 
be excluded?  

Are there any 
background 
papers? 

Documents to 
be considered 
by Decision 
taker 

COVID-19 
Local 
Restrictions 
Support Grant 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

 October 2020 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Commercial 
Services) 
 

Mutual 
Agreement 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

 August 2020 Paragraph 1: 
Information 
relating to any 
individual. 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Deputy Chief 
Executive 
 

Town Hall 
Boiler 
Replacement 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

 June 2020 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Commercial 
Services) 
 

A
genda P

age 77
A

genda Item
 6



 
Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to be 
taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Reason the 
decision is key  

Earliest Date 
decision can 
be taken 

Will the public 
be excluded?  

Are there any 
background 
papers? 

Documents to 
be considered 
by Decision 
taker 

Queens Road 
Car Park 
Resurfacing - 
Procurement of 
Main Contractor 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Economic 
Development 
and Public 
Service 
Reform) 

A contract 
worth £100,000 
or more 

August 2020 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Commercial 
Services) 
 

Website Review 
Contract Award 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

A contract 
worth £100,000 
or more 

September 
2020 

Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Customer and 
Digital) 
 

A
genda P

age 78
A

genda Item
 6



 
Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to be 
taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Reason the 
decision is key  

Earliest Date 
decision can 
be taken 

Will the public 
be excluded?  

Are there any 
background 
papers? 

Documents to 
be considered 
by Decision 
taker 

Council 
Chamber 
refurbishment - 
contract award 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

 January 2021 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Governance) 
 

Insurance 
Portfolio 
contract award 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

 September 
2021 

 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Governance) 
 

Executive Member (Early Intervention) 
 

Review of 
Neighbourhood 
Working 
following the 
Boundary 
Review 
 

Executive 
Member (Early 
Intervention) 

Executive 
Member (Early 
Intervention) 

 June 2020 No 
 

Details can be 
found here: 
https://democra
cy.chorley.gov.
uk/ieListDocum
ents.aspx?CId=
117&MId=8153 
 

Report of the  
Director (Early 
Intervention and 
Support) 
 

A
genda P

age 79
A

genda Item
 6



 
Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to be 
taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Reason the 
decision is key  

Earliest Date 
decision can 
be taken 

Will the public 
be excluded?  

Are there any 
background 
papers? 

Documents to 
be considered 
by Decision 
taker 

Investment and 
improvements 
at Duxbury Park 
Community 
Facilities 
 

Executive 
Member (Early 
Intervention) 

Executive 
Member (Early 
Intervention) 

A new or 
unprogrammed 
capital scheme 
of £100,000 or 
more 

July 2020 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director (Early 
Intervention and 
Support) 
 

Allocation of 
Small 
Community 
Grant Funding 
20/21 
 

Executive 
Member (Early 
Intervention) 

Executive 
Member (Early 
Intervention) 

 October 2020 No 
 

Small 
Community 
Grant Funding - 
processhttps://d
emocracy.chorl
ey.gov.uk/mgIs
sueHistoryHom
e.aspx?IId=418
24&Opt=0 
 

Report of the  
Director (Early 
Intervention and 
Support) 
 

Approval for the 
scope of 
development 
projects at 
Leisure Centres 
 

Executive 
Member (Early 
Intervention) 

Executive 
Member (Early 
Intervention) 

A contract 
worth £100,000 
or more 

January 2021  
 

To Follow 
 

Report of the  
Deputy Chief 
Executive 
 

Executive Member (Customer, Advice and Streetscene) 
 

A
genda P

age 80
A

genda Item
 6



 
Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to be 
taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Reason the 
decision is key  

Earliest Date 
decision can 
be taken 

Will the public 
be excluded?  

Are there any 
background 
papers? 

Documents to 
be considered 
by Decision 
taker 

Recycling 
Strategy 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Customer, 
Advice and 
Streetscene 
Services) 

Executive 
Member 
(Customer, 
Advice and 
Streetscene 
Services) 

 July 2020 No 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Customer and 
Digital) 
 

Executive Member (Homes and Housing) 
 

Tatton Assisted 
Living 
Allocations 
Policy 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Homes and 
Housing) 

Executive 
Member 
(Economic 
Development 
and Public 
Service 
Reform) 

 January 2021 No 
 

To follow 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Commercial 
Services) 
 

Executive Member (Public Protection) 
 

A
genda P

age 81
A

genda Item
 6



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 

 
Report of Meeting Date 

Deputy Director of Finance 

(Introduced by the Executive 
Member Resources) 

Executive Cabinet  21 January 2021 

 

DRAFT BUDGET 2021/22 AND SUMMARY POSITION OVER 

THE MEDIUM TERM 
 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 

1. To set out the budget position for 2021/22 including the forecast for the following 2 years 
to 2023/24 and also present the relevant proposals in respect of: 

• The use of forecast resources identified in 2021/22 

• Budget consultation 

 

RECOMMENDATION(S) 

2. That members agree the contents of this report in order to start the budget consultation 
process and note the following proposed budget items, in particular: 

• A proposed 1.99% increase in council tax in 2021/22 with no proposed cuts to 
services 

• The forecast balanced budget for 2021/22 and the forecast budget position in 
2022/23 and 2023/24 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY OF REPORT 

3. The budget forecast over the next 3 years have been updated to take account of the 
following: 

• Due to the continued pressures on council expenditure budgets and reduced 
funding from Government, there is a proposed 1.99% increase in council tax in 
2021/22. 

• There is a proposed 1.99% increase in council tax in 2022/23 and 2022/23 this will 
be revisited every year and will be dependent upon the outcome of the 
Government announcements regarding the Fair Funding Review and review of the 
business rates system. 

• Continued investment in ongoing revenue budgets of approximately £1m that will 
deliver corporate strategy priorities 

• Capital investments of over £56m in corporate priority projects 

• Strategies to reduce the budget deficit in the medium term 

 

4. Consultation on the proposed budget for 2021/22 will commence following approval of the 
proposals by Executive Cabinet. The consultation will invite responses from residents, 
partners, parish groups and other stakeholders through a variety of methods including a 
short survey. Results will be analysed and published in February for consideration as part 
of the council’s final budget. 

 

 

Agenda Page 83 Agenda Item 8



Confidential report 
Please bold as appropriate 

Yes  No 

 

Key Decision? 
Please bold as appropriate 

Yes  No 

 
 
REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION(S) 

(If the recommendations are accepted) 

5. The council wishes to set out its budget proposals and consult on them with residents 
 

ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED 

6. None, this is the draft budget and alternative budgets may be considered as part of the final 
budget proposal. 

 

CORPORATE PRIORITIES 
 
7. This report relates to the following Strategic Objectives: 
 

Involving residents in improving their local 
area and equality of access for all 

✓ A strong local economy ✓ 

Clean, safe and healthy homes and 
communities 

✓ 
An ambitious council that does more 
to meet the needs of residents and 
the local area 

✓ 

 

Spending Round 2020 and Provisional Local Government Finance Settlement 
 
8. There continues to be uncertainty regarding the council’s funding streams with the 

Government announcing a one-year financial settlement for 2021/22 rather than the 
expected multi-year settlement. The Provisional Local Government Finance Settlement 
2021/22 was published on 17 December 2020. The implications of this provisional 
settlement are outlined below. 

 

Business Rates 
 
9. As stated above the assumption for the 2021/22 budget is that Government funding will be 

in line with 2020/21, this includes the assumption that the council will once again be a 
member of the Lancashire Business Rates Pool. Chorley Council benefits from additional 
business rates income of approximately £800k from being in the pool. This is assumed to 
continue in 2021/22. 

 
10. Forecasting levels of business rates beyond 2021/22 remains complicated due to 

uncertainty regarding the quantum of business rates that will remain when the system is 
reset. The date of this reset is still uncertain, the Government had forecast an 
implementation date of April 2022 and so it is assumed in the budget that reforms will take 
place then. The level of business rates retained by Chorley Council under the new system 
will also depend on the outcome of the fair funding review. This review will set new baseline 
funding allocations for all Local Authorities and aims to simplify the existing system and 
provide an up to date assessment of Authorities relative needs and resources. Until the 
government completes the fair funding review and the reset of business rates, the council 
will continue to have to work with considerable uncertainty in its budget planning. 

 

FUNDING 

Agenda Page 84 Agenda Item 8



11. To be prudent, the budget assumes over the medium-term that the council will lose the 
benefit from being in the pool and therefore reduce retained business rates income by 
£800k. Previous announcements from Government have mentioned a transitional period for 
implementing funding reforms. As such, the budget assumes a reduction in business rates 
income of £400k in 2022/23 and the full £800k by 2023/24. 

 

 

New Homes Bonus 

 

12. As expected, funding from New Home Bonus (NHB) is still assumed to discontinue in 
2023/24 however it has been announced that the existing New Homes Bonus scheme will 
be maintained for a further year. Allocations included in the budget are as follows: 

• 2021/22 – 2-year allocation £1.462m 

• 2022/23 – 1-year allocation £0.550m 

 

13. The government is due to consult on reforms to the new home bonus shortly, with a view to 
implementing reform in 2022-23. It is expected that a replacement to new home bonus will 
be announced however nothing further is known as to how the scheme will operate and 
what additional levels of funding, if any, will be made available to the council. Again, this 
creates a significant degree of uncertainty for the council. 

 

Council Tax 
 

14. The Provisional Local Government Finance Settlement announced a council tax increase 
limit for district councils of up to 2% or £5 on a Band D equivalent in 2021/22. No 
announcement has been made regarding future years however it is assumed that the same 
principles will continue throughout the future three-year budget period. 

 

15. The Provisional Local Government Finance Settlement publishes the Core Spending Power 
available to local authorities. This is the level of resources the Government assumes 
councils will have available and is predicated on all councils across the country increasing 
council tax up to the referendum limit of 2% (5% for authorities with social care 
responsibilities) year-on-year. As such, if the council were to freeze council tax it will 
create a gap over the medium-term as to what funding the Government assumes the 
council will have and what funding it can actually generate. This is important for 
when the Government implements the changes following on from the Fair Funding 
Review. When setting the level of retained business rates for the council, the 
Government will assume the council enjoys a higher level of council tax to 
compensate for any potential fall in business rates. 

 
Lower Tier Services Grant 
 

16. As introduced above, the Government calculates every year the council’s core spending 
power that is a combination of the council’s council tax income, business rates income and 
new homes bonus grant allocation. For 2021/22 the £856k reduction in new homes bonus 
from £2.356m to £1.490m is not offset by the assumed additional income that the council 
will receive from increasing its council tax charges. As such the government has introduced 
a one-off £519k grant to compensate the council in 2021/22 called the Lower Tier Services 
Grant. This is an un-ringfenced grant that has been included in the council’s funding 
streams. 

 

Covid-19 Funding 
 

Agenda Page 85 Agenda Item 8



17. During 2020/21 the council received numerous funding streams from Government to 
support businesses and residents during the pandemic. This included a £1.634m of un-
ringfenced emergency funding to support the council through the immediate and long-term 
impacts of the pandemic. The provisional settlement also announced an additional £1.55 
billion of un-ringfenced grant across all local government, of which Chorley Council’s 
allocation is £556k. 

 

 

18. The chart above outlines the forecast level of funding across the next three years in 
comparison to previous allocations. Retained business rates are forecast to reduce in 22/23 
when the Fair Funding Review and reset are forecast to be implemented. This is a cautious 
but necessary assumption given the uncertainty surrounding the new system. The level of 
council tax in the charts above does not include the proposed increases in council tax from 
2021/22 onwards. 

Agenda Page 86 Agenda Item 8



 

Pay Award 

 

19. The Government spending review announced a pay freeze in 2021/22 for the majority of 
public sector staff with a guaranteed a pay rise of at least £250 for all staff that earn less 
than £24,000 per year. These assumptions have been included in the pay budget for 
Chorley Council in 2021/22 although these Government proposals are not yet agreed with 
public sector unions.  

 

20. The spending review also announced that national living wage will rise from £8.72 to £8.91 
an hour and will be extended to workers aged 23 and over from April 2021 This will not 
affect Chorley Council’s pay bands for 2021/22 as the council pays above this level already. 

 

21. Looking further forward the council is has included a 2% pay increase for all staff in 2022/23 
and 2023/24. This assumption adds approximately £200k to the pay budget each financial 
year. 

 

Pension 
 
22. As part of a triennial pension review the Lancashire County Pension Fund announced an 

increase in employer pension contributions for 2020/21 to 2022/23 to meet the future costs 
of the scheme. The contributions have increased from 14.4% to 16.4% resulting in an 
increase in the council’s contribution. The same contribution rate is assumed for 2023/24 
although this will be reviewed when the new three-year review is undertaken. 

 
 

Brexit and Covid-19 
 
23. Concerns remain about the impact of the United Kingdom’s withdrawal from the European 

Union (BREXIT). Much speculation continues around the likely financial effects of the final 
leave arrangements, but it is clear that the continued uncertainty has presented significant 
concerns across the country. The potential risks to the council include increases in inflation, 
a slowdown in the local economy affecting rental and property values and income from 
retained business rates and council tax. To date the council has received £35k of funding 
from Government for EU Exit Preparation.  

 

24. The financial impact of Covid-19 has been outlined in the quarterly budget monitoring 
reports approved by Executive Cabinet throughout 2020/21. This includes: 

 

• Forecast reductions in council tax and business rates collection rates. The 
Government has provided grant support for this loss in income during 2020/21. 

• Government grant funding received to support various initiatives including support 
to businesses, providing additional homelessness and food support to residents 
and support for the track and trace systems. 

• Government support for the council’s reductions in fees and charges in 2020/21 
including reduced car parking income. This is forecast to continue in April to June 
2021. 

• Reductions in rents at the council’s retail and other commercial sites 

 
 
 
 

EXPENDITURE 

Agenda Page 87 Agenda Item 8



 

25. As part of budget setting for 2021/22 and further forward the following assumptions have 
been made regarding Covid-19 and Brexit: 

 

Income 

• That a net surplus from Strawberry Fields will not be realised until 2023/24 
onwards 

• Income from the existing Market Walk will be permanently reduced by at least 
£100k as the retail industry adjusts to a post-Covid environment.  

• The income from Market Walk Extension will be lower than previously forecast and 
will take longer to reach maximum capacity however the site will still generate a 
net income to the council. 

• The impact on fees and charges will not be permanent and that income levels will 
return to pre-Covid levels including the council’s major sources of income such 
planning fees, car parking and garden waste subscriptions. 

 

 

Expenditure 

• Any expenditure relating to the council’s compliance with the current or future 
Government’s requirements relating to Brexit or Covid-19 will be met through 
existing budgets or grants from Government. This could include future grants to 
businesses, support to the homelessness or support to residents such as 
additional council tax support. 

• There will be additional net expenditure incurred in 2021/22 relating to bringing the 
council’s leisure services in-house. It is expected this cost will reduce over the 
medium-term. These figures are identified separately in this budget report. 

 

Agenda Page 88 Agenda Item 8



 
26. The council’s total budget deficit is summarised in table 1 and is based upon the reductions 

in funding described above and the following key budget assumptions. It should be noted 
that some of the assumptions are still potentially subject to change that may impact 
positively or negatively on the budget. 

 
 
Table 1: Total Budget Deficit 
 

  
2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 

£m £m £m 

Council Tax  (7,193) (7,265) (7,338) 

Retained Business Rates (4,982) (4,163) (3,795) 

Lower Tier Services Grant Allocation (519) 0 0 

New Homes Bonus  (1,490) (550) 0 

TOTAL FUNDING  (14,184) (11,978) (11,133) 

        

NET EXPENDITURE  14,486 14,986 15,447 

        

BUDGET DEFICIT 302 3,008 4,314 

        

Leisure Services       

Estimated Cost of Leisure Services  606 243 0 

        

TOTAL BUDGET DEFICIT 908 3,251 4,314 

 
 
27. All deficits and savings identified in the table 1 and in the remainder of this report are 

cumulative. For example, the deficit of £4.314m in 2023/24 identified above is the result of a 
£3.251m deficit in 2022/23 and further budget pressures of £1.063m identified for 2023/24. 

 

Table 2: Key Budget Assumptions 
 

Key Assumptions   2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 

Increase in Retained Business Rates through Growth 0% 0% 0% 

Future Service Pension Rate   16.4% 16.4% 16.4% 

Pension Fund Deficit Recovery  £0.432m £0.450m £0.467m 

Additional Business Rates - Lancashire Pool (£0.800m) £0.000m £0.000m 

Reduction in Business Rates through Fair Funding 
Review and Business Rates Reforms 

£0.000m £0.400m £0.800m 

Income from LCC (£0.210m) (£0.210m) (£0.210m) 

Pay Award (average) 0% 2% 2% 

 

BUDGET DEFICIT 

Agenda Page 89 Agenda Item 8

file:///C:/Users/neil.halton/AppData/Local/Budget%20Monitoring/2020-21/Leisure/LATC%20Workings/CBC%20Leisure%20Services%20Income%20and%20Expenditure.xlsx


 
 
Leisure Services 
 
28. One of the largest financial impacts on the council due to COVID-19 was the disruption 

caused to the procurement of the leisure services management contract. The council has 
been unable to transition services to a new external provider and as such has brought 
these services in-house. The council is reviewing the models of delivering leisure services 
and has included in the budget a prudent estimate of continuing to deliver the services 
through council-owned means with an expectation that the net cost to the council will be 
zero by 2023/24.   

 

 
29. Funding to Chorley Council has fallen from over £17m in 2016/17 to a forecast figure of 

£11.1m by 2023/24. During this period, the council continued to experience inflationary 
increases in staff and non-staff budgets. However, the council has been ambitious in its 
approach to meeting the budget deficit through realising efficiency savings and generating 
additional income. 

 

30. The council has been successful in keeping its costs down whilst continuing to provide the 
high-quality services expected from its residents. The council achieves this by continually 
reviewing its budgets and contracts. Staffing efficiencies of over £1m have been achieved 
since 2014/15 with further savings realised and future savings forecast through the 
council’s commitment to explore and invest in alternative delivery models, including sharing 
more services with South Ribble Borough Council 

 
31. The council will continue to invest within Chorley borough to improve housing, provide 

employment opportunities as well as generate income and therefore make the council less 
reliant on the increasingly uncertain funding from Government.  

 
Table 3: Balancing the Budget 

  
2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 

£m £m £m 
        

TOTAL BUDGET DEFICIT 908 3,251 4,314 
        

Efficiency Savings       

Shared Services – Phase 1 (Achieved) (148) (148) (148) 

Shared Services – Phase 1 (Next Phase) Forecast (40) (220) (220) 

Shared Services – Phase 2 Forecast (149) (179) (179) 
        

Income Generation        

Market Walk Extension   (100) (150) (150) 

Primrose Retirement   (74) (80) (80) 

Strawberry Fields   223 (0) (188) 

Investment in Logistics House Site (450) (450) (450) 

        

NET DEFICIT / (SURPLUS)  170 2,023 2,940 

        

32. On 17 November 2020 Full Council approved the proposals for phase 2 of shared services 
with South Ribble Borough Council, including a joint digital strategy, customer services 

BALANCING THE BUDGET IN 2021/22 

Agenda Page 90 Agenda Item 8



operating model, shared leadership and management, and joint Chief Executive. This 
report built on the already successful implementation of phase 1 of expanded shared 
services between the two councils. The total forecast savings from the two phases of 
shared services are £337k in 2021/22 rising to £547k by 2023/24. Now that joint Directors 
at both councils are in place, service reviews will be undertaken at both councils with the 
possibility of other efficiencies being generated. 

 

33. The £16m extension to Market Walk Shopping Centre opened its doors in November 
2019 and brought investment in both the retail and night-time economy across the town 
centre. Prior to COVID-19 the investment was forecast to bring the council a net income of 
over £200k per annum. The council has revised the expectations regarding its investment in 
retail and at this point in time, there are five tenants occupying the site at 75% occupancy 
generating approximately £100k net income per annum. There remains interest in the 
remaining 2 units with a forecast total net income over the medium-term of £150k. 

 
34. The Primrose Retirement Village opened its doors to residents in October 2019 and all of 

the 65 apartments are occupied. This Corporate Strategy project allows people to live 
independently whilst receiving the care and support needed to enjoy later life.  

 

35. Chorley Council’s £8.5m Strawberry Fields Digital Office Park had reached 40% 
occupancy prior to the COVID-19 pandemic. Since then the council has managed the site 
as efficiently as possible including:  

• renegotiating with the European Regional Development Fund (ERDF) additional 
flexibility as to the mix of tenants the council were eligible to attract to the site 

• utilising the remaining capital budget to reconfigure the internal floor area to 
maximise interest from potential tenants 

 

There remains significant interest in the site and the budget forecasts a gradual increase in 
income beginning with a break-even position in 2022/23 rising to a net income to the 
council of £188k by 2023/24. 
 

36. On 23 July 2019 Full Council approved the £33m purchase of the Logistics House site in 
Buckshaw. The council leases the building back to the current tenant via a wholly owned 
company with an expected net income, after borrowing costs, of £450k rising to £900k 
towards the end of the lease term. The council set aside the initial £450k of net income in 
2020/21 to create an income equalisation reserve that will be used to manage any budget 
implications of the site becoming vacant.  

 
INVESTING IN CORPORATE PRIORITIES 
 
37. The council continues to invest in delivering the ambitions set out in its Corporate Strategy 

and to ensure that the council delivers high quality services to its residents. The key areas 
of investment are set out on the following pages. 

 
 
 
 

 
 

Agenda Page 91 Agenda Item 8



 

 

 

 

 
 

 

Involving residents in improving their 
local area and equality of access for all 
 

£50k to transform the council’s website to 
provide a provide the highest quality, customer 
focused and efficient website which will be 
accessible for all.  
 

£1.6m capital budget for improvements to Astley 
Hall that will ensure a safe and secure local 
asset that offers a high quality, sustainable visitor 
attraction for future years. Work has commenced 
in the new year 
 
 
 

 
 
Clean, safe and healthy homes and 
communities 
 
 
 

An ambitious council that does more 
to meet the needs of residents and 
the local area 
 
£60k to support over 230 vulnerable 
individuals through social prescribing, helping 
them to improve their wellbeing. 
 
£65k to sustain key bus routes in the borough 
to mitigate the impact of county wide cuts, 
ensuring that residents can access all areas of 
the borough. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

In 2020/21 the council allocated over £1m of revenue investment to deliver corporate strategy priorities through a 
programme of activities designed to meet the fundamental needs of local residents, like health, housing and jobs, 
while continuing to get Chorley in the best social and economic position of the future.   

Investing in corporate priorities 2020/21 

A strong local economy 
 
£600k investment in our Chorley Markets to 
improve and the enhance retail and visitor 
experience, contributing to the visitor economy 
of Chorley.  
 
£9.2m investment in the Alker Lane site which 
will deliver a development for employment 
land, including the delivery of light industrial 
units for business use, which will drive forward 
economic growth in the borough. The council 
has successfully secured £2m of external 
funding to deliver this project. 

 
 
 

Clean, safe and healthy homes and 
communities 
 

£50k to improve street cleaning and litter 
collections. Customer dissatisfaction was 14.8% 
for September 2020 compared to a target of 
20%.  
 

£15m redevelopment has begun at the Tatton 
Recreation site which will provide vital facilities 
for local residents, including new health services 
and improved play and open spaces. The council 
has successfully secured £9m of external 
funding to deliver these improvements. 
 

£2.5m investment underway at West Way 
Playing Fields.  

A
genda P

age 92
A

genda Item
 8



 
 
 

 

A strong local economy 

Investment Priorities 2021/22 

 In 2021/22 the Council will allocate £1.7m revenue investment and over £30m in capital investment to drive forward 
ambitions for economic growth and ensure that Chorley is an even more attractive place to live, work and invest with 
high quality recreation grounds, health services and business development. The council will also continue to work hard 
to deliver sustainable public services through transforming the organisation and working closely with partners to 
integrate services. The council has also made a commitment to deliver its green agenda and this is reflected in the 
priorities for investment.  

 
Future capital investment: 

Whittle Health Hub – £4m of 

investment to develop a modern 

and high-quality health facility. 

Housing – £1.5m allocated to the 

deliver council-owned affordable 

housing across the borough.  

Green agenda – £500k allocated 

to dedicated resource and a 

programme of delivery.  

Tatton – £15m to deliver provide 

vital facilities for local residents, 

including improved health 

provision and open spaces. 

Alker Lane – £9.2m to deliver 

light industrial units for business 

use to drive forward local 

economic growth.  

 

An ambitious council that does more to meet the needs of residents and the local 
area 

• £100,000 to support future planning applications and enable us to, if needed, 
defend locally made decisions. 

• £60,000 to continue to support vulnerable individuals through funding for the 
social prescribing team – as well as securing more investment from the NHS.  

 

A strong local economy 
• £500,000 including the removal of asbestos and for the demolition of bingo hall to 

make way for public realm works in the town centre making the town centre an 
even better place to live and work.  

• £100,000 per year to improve the services from Chorley Bus Station. 
 

Involving residents in improving their local area and equality of access for all 

• £400,000 to fund our large commissions which enable third sector organisations 
to deliver support to residents against key priorities for the next three years. 

• £15,000 to provide additional new support to the Voluntary, Community and 
Faith Sector to provide support in the community.   

  

Clean, safe and healthy homes and communities 

• £100,000 to fund crucial works to the council’s CCTV operations centre. 

• £100,000 to refresh the Local Plan for the next five years. 

• £120,000 to contribute to running of the Youth Zone including outreach work. 

• £350,000 to deliver the Clayton-le-Woods parish building.  
 

 

A
genda P

age 93
A

genda Item
 8



 

 

 

 

 
Planning 
 
38. One of the identified priorities is for the council to obtain greater influence around planning. 

The implications surrounding planning decisions affect Chorley Council and its residents 
and impacts on the emerging local plan and future land supply. The following actions have 
been identified: 

 

• The council will lobby central government to ensure that Chorley Council is to be given 
special dispensation to have alternative method for determining local housing need due 
to exceptional circumstances of land constraints. 

• Remain committed to ensuring that we deliver strong and locally accountable decision 
making in planning.  

 

39. The council has £100k per year revenue budget allocated to the review of the local plan 
that will be fully committed until the plan is complete. A £100k reserve has been set aside to 
further support the council to defend locally made planning decisions. 

 
 
Education  
 

40. One of the identified priorities is greater provision of high school education across the 
borough in response to a growing population and limited capacity within existing 
establishments. To contribute towards the successful delivery of this priority, the following 
actions have been identified:   

 

• Reviewing the evidence base and establishing the current position on requirements 
across the borough. This is to be used to advocate with Lancashire County Council for 
further provision. This piece of work will be aligned with the review of the local plan.   
 

 
Delivery in local areas  
 

41. The council will increase its investment in improvements across the borough, especially in 
local areas targeting the smaller parks, open spaces, community spaces and play facilities 
right across the borough. The council will also invest in enhanced tidying up of shrubbery, 
replacing old equipment and where possible creating extra allotments. Further works of 
£100k have been identified within the borough and will be funded through reserves or 
external developer s106 contributions. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL PLANNING 

ADDITIONAL INVESTMENT 2021/22 

Agenda Page 94 Agenda Item 8



 
 
42. Despite the budget savings identified in this report, as outlined above there remain large 

forecast budget deficits of £1.945m in 2022/23 and £2.811m in 2023/24. The council’s 
medium term plan to meet the budget deficits is outlined below in Table 4. 

 
 
 
Table 4: Medium Term Financial Plan 
 

  2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 
 £m £m £m 
        

NET DEFICIT / (SURPLUS)  170 2,023 2,940 

        

Council Tax Increase – 2% 21/22, 22/23 & 23/24  (143) (292) (447) 

Parking Income   0 (200) (200) 

Investment Sites  0 (200) (400) 

TOTAL SAVINGS & ADDITIONAL INCOME  (143) (692) (1,047) 

        

REVISED DEFICIT / (SURPLUS)  27 1,331 1,893 

        

Directorate Savings Identified 0 (318) (513) 

Future Savings (27) (1,013) (1,380) 

REVISED DEFICIT / (SURPLUS) 0 0 0 

 
 
TRANSFORMATION STRATEGY 
 
43. The transformation strategy covers many aspects of change both within the council and in 

partnership with other organisations. At this stage, the main strands of the strategy that 
could generate savings and income are outlined further below. 

 
Income Generation 
 
Council Tax 
 
44. The Provisional Local Government Finance Settlement outlines the Core Spending Power 

available to local authorities. This is the level of resources the Government assumes 
councils will have available and is predicated on all councils across the country increasing 
council tax up to the referendum limit of 2% (5% for authorities with social care 
responsibilities) year-on-year. As such, if the council were to freeze council tax it is likely it 
will need to then bridge a larger gap between funding allocated to it, via business rates 
retention and the fair funding review, and funding required to deliver services in 2021/22 
onwards.  

 

45. Through effective management of its budget and investment in income generating projects, 
Chorley Council has been able to maintain one of the lowest levels of council tax in 
Lancashire as demonstrated below: 

 

 

 

Agenda Page 95 Agenda Item 8



  

Band D 
Equivalent 

2020/21 
£ 

Preston 320.75 

Rossendale 279.57 

Pendle 270.62 

Hyndburn 266.77 

South Ribble 223.24 

West Lancs. 208.39 

Wyre 204.74 

Chorley  171.37 

Fylde 165.39 

Ribble Valley 155.69 

 
46. However, continued uncertainty regarding future funding and the need for the council to 

manage staffing and non-staffing inflationary budget increases, means that this budget 
proposes to increase Chorley Council’s share of council tax by 1.99% in 2021/22, similar 
increases have been forecast for 2022/23 and 2023/24 however these will be reviewed 
annually and will be subject to the outcome of the delayed Government reforms to council 
funding expected in April 2022. 

 

47. The council will remain committed to supporting those who may struggle to pay their council 
tax because of the challenging circumstances they find themselves in. On that basis, the 
council will make use of the monies it has available to support council tax payers. 

 
 
Parking Charges 
 
48. The council’s parking charges were reduced in 2016/17 as part of the updated parking 

strategy. Future increases in parking charges will be considered by the council if they are 
deemed necessary to meet the budget deficit. However, new charges would only be 
introduced as part of a renewed parking strategy and only if changes to parking tariffs 
would not be detrimental to the town centre. 

 
Investment Sites 
 
49. The council owns several sites that are being developed to bring forward the expansion of 

employment, housing and health services within the borough. These include: 

• Land at Alker Lane 

• Land at Shady Lane 

• Whittle Surgery 

• The redevelopment of site surrounding Tatton Recreation Ground  

 
50. These sites are at different stages of advancement but are forecast to generate additional 

net income for the council of £200k by 2022/23 and £400k by 2023/24 whilst delivering 
improvements in local infrastructure for residents and businesses.  

 
  

Agenda Page 96 Agenda Item 8



Future Savings 
   
51. The council’s senior leadership team has identified possible future savings of up to £513k to 

address the future forecast budget deficit. These could be realised through 

• Renegotiation of current contracts 

• Implementation of the Digital Strategy and WorkSmart programme - maximising 
the use of technology and digital information. Cost savings are expected through 
process/productivity improvements and further increase in digital take up of council 
services  

• The modernisation of Streetscene Services – the council has invested in these 
services to continue to improve current working practices, modernise and 
introduce improvements to deliver high quality services in a co-ordinated way. 

• Continually reviewing its staffing structures to ensure they are efficient and fit-for-
purpose. 

 
52. The level of future savings required to balance the budget will be largely dependent upon 

the outcome of the Fair Funding Review and Business Rates Review. Both the impact of 
this review and the date of implementation remaining unknown but are forecast to reduce 
the council’s funding by £800k by 2023/24. If this was the outcome of the review, then the 
council will need to recognise savings and/or additional income of £1.244m by 2023/24.  

 

53. The council will continue to invest in its services to recognise additional income and 
efficiencies. Future opportunities include: 

 

• A review of the council’s portfolio of assets to recognise potential opportunities 
for sale, redevelopment whilst improving services. This council will continue to 
enable residents and businesses to access council services digitally whilst 
maintaining the necessary face-to-face support. Through the digital investment 
already made, forecast improvements in council services and expected 
efficiencies should be realised over the medium-term. 

• The council has been successful in investing within the borough to generate 
jobs, improve health services as well as improving the retail and night-time 
economy. Whilst delivering this the council has also generated additional net 
income that supports other council services. The MTFS includes a forecast target 
of £400k net income by 2023/24 from such investments, however the council is 
identifying further opportunities that are hoped to provide net income over and 
above this target. The council has successfully brought in additional external 
funding from various sources including Homes England, Lancashire Enterprise 
Partnership (LEP), CIL and S106. The council will build on this success to deliver 
future investments.  

• The council is ambitious in its delivery of services and will continue to pursue 
alternative models of delivering its services. The MTFS includes £547k of 
efficiency savings through the expansion of shared services with South Ribble 
Council however both councils will continue to develop these models with future 
budget savings expected. Chorley Council will also review its delivery of other 
services such as its management of leisure services. 

 

Agenda Page 97 Agenda Item 8



 
 
54. Over the past seven years, the council has made ambitious investments to help enable the 

delivery of a balanced budget. However, the council has also been ensured a prudent and 
affordable approach to delivering the medium-term financial strategies. The council has set 
aside and increased the balances to several reserves as outlined in Table 5 below. The 
expected balances of these reserves is given in table 5 below. 

 

Table 5: Forecast Reserve Balances 

 
2021/22 

£m 

General Fund Reserve 4.000 

Reserves - Income   

Market Walk Income Equalisation Reserve 0.335 

Logistics House Income Equalisation Reserve 0.450 

Business Rates Retention Reserve 1.256 

Total Reserves - Income  2.041 

Reserves – Asset Maintenance  

Market Walk Asset Maintenance 0.104 

General Asset Maintenance 0.080 

Total Reserves – Asset Maintenance  0.184 

Reserves - Other  

Income Generation Reserve 0.326 

Change Management Reserve 0.250 

Grant Support to Local Businesses 0.200 

Planning Reserve 0.100 

Total Reserves – Other  0.876 

 
 
55. These reserves are necessary to mitigate the financial impact of the uncertainty the council 

faces such as the reforms to future funding levels and the impact of Brexit and Covid-19 on 
its residents and local businesses. 

 

56. The council has set aside £1.2m to manage any one-off reductions in business rates such 
as unbudgeted changes to valuations or the implementation of future expected Government 
reforms. The council has also set aside over £300k to manage any in-year reductions in 
income from Market Walk. The budget is already set to anticipate a £100k reduction in 
ongoing income however the reserve may be called upon to manage income reductions 
from unforeseen voids or managing one-off incentives, such as rent free periods, when 
leases are renewed. 

 

 

RESERVES 

Agenda Page 98 Agenda Item 8



 
57. £200k has been set aside to continue to offer grants to enable local businesses to relocate 

or expand within the borough. These grants enable the council to match fund local business 
investment to expand local businesses and job opportunities, this will be especially 
important during the post-Covid recovery period. 

 

58. The council has set aside £4m in general funds, approximately 30% of the annual net 
expenditure budget, to manage future uncertainty in expenditure and income over the 
medium-term. The council has not budgeted to utilise this reserve to manage budget 
deficits however this will be reviewed as part of the council’s continual budget management 
process. 

 

 
59. This report has dealt with the Council’s revenue budget. Implicit in the investment 

programme set out above, however, are financial implications for the capital programme. 
The latest three-year Capital Programme can be found in the Revenue and Capital Budget 
Monitoring Report 2019/20 Report 2 approved at November Executive Cabinet 2019. The 
council has an ambitious capital programme with over £56m budgeted to be invested over 
the MTFS period. As a result of this, there are no proposed changes to the capital 
programme as part of this draft budget. 

 

 

 
 
IMPLICATIONS OF REPORT 
 
60. Some of figures outlined in the report are estimates and based on assumptions that are 

likely to change. These include external risks such as changes to Government funding 
arrangements, changes to interest rates and national and local economic changes. In 
addition, the council faces internal risks such as void rates in its income generating assets 
and the risks of delivering transformational change such as the expansion of shared 
services. 

 
61. The risks are dealt with through managing prudent levels of reserves, continually monitoring 

government announcements, monitoring current and future economic projections and by 
making prudent budget assumptions. 

 
62. This report has implications in the following areas and the relevant Directors’ comments are 

included: 
 

Finance ✓ Customer Services   

Human Resources  Equality and Diversity  ✓ 

Legal  
Integrated Impact Assessment 
required? 

 

No significant implications in this 
area 

 Policy and Communications  

 
COMMENTS OF THE STATUTORY FINANCE OFFICER  
 
63. The financial implications of the above report are all contained in the text above but to 

clarify all proposals are funded and can be accommodated within the 2021/22 budget. It 
should be noted that the report does contain several assumptions on some future budget 
elements and also what the final out-turn position will be for 2020/21. Should any of this 
change due to unforeseen circumstances arising before 31st March 2021, this will be 

CAPITAL PROGRAMME 

Agenda Page 99 Agenda Item 8



reviewed and reported 
 

COMMENTS OF THE MONITORING OFFICER  
 
64. The budget proposals are in accordance with the requirements of legislation 
 
JAMES THOMSON 
DEPUTY DIRECTOR OF FINANCE (S151 OFFICER) 
 

   

Report Author Ext Date 

James Thomson / Neil Halton *** 8 January 2021 

 

Agenda Page 100 Agenda Item 8



Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme 2020-2021 

Scrutiny Committee 

M
o

n
th

 

 Education and Children's 
Services 

External Health Internal 

June 
 

   Update from the ICS on NHS 
Cells for Lancashire and 
digital and engagement with 
local people.  

 Temporary changes to clinical 
services across the ICS during 
the COVID-19 pandemic 

 

 

July 
 

Response to the COVID 19 
pandemic in Lancashire - 
perceptions of the experiences 
of children and young people, 
and headlines from the 
operation of service during the 
COVID-19 emergency period. 

Strengthening flood risk 
management and preparedness 

 1. RIPA annual report 
2. The impact of Covid 19 on 
county council services 
Highways – challenges faced 
following pandemic and 
resuming 'normal' work 
programmes  
 

September 
 

 Education: 
- What powers do we have 
as a county council/what 
can we do to support 
schools and parents.  
- Position update on the 
wider reopening of schools 

 Schools Causing Concern 
Task Group report – 
response to 
recommendations  

 SEND Ofsted inspection 
report  

 Review of work programme  
 

  Adult social care – winter 
preparations (Supporting the 
social care sector including 
domiciliary care workers) 

 NHS 111 First 
 

Covid 19 – what comes next? 
Including building pan-
Lancashire working and 
Democratic involvement in 
resilience forums and 
maintaining democratic 
leadership during a crisis 
 

A
genda P

age 101
A

genda Item
 9



October 
 

Children's Social Care - 
protecting vulnerable/valuable 
children – plans in place to 
manage spikes in referrals.  
Child poverty increase and the 
impact on the demand on 
social care 
 

 Universal credit – Citizens 
Advice 

 Decarbonisation pathway – 
Lancashire, Electricity North 
West and Cadent Gas 

 

  

M
o

n
th

 

November 
 

Education – digital poverty and 
lesson learned. 
Digital aspirational views – 
turning challenge into 
opportunity. 
 

  Suicide prevention in 
Lancashire 

 LCC Adult Social Care Winter 
Plan 

Speeding Traffic and the lack 
of enforcement 
 
 

December 
 

Impact of the pandemic on 
children and young people's 
mental health – plans in place 
to support and an update on 
CAMHS  including managing 
increase in contacts, anxiety of 
YP on return to school and 
availability of more online 
support 
 

 NHS Test & Trace and 
Community Testing 

 

 January Early Years sector – impact on 
private providers supporting 
vulnerable children and 
families (including update on 
the EY Strategy and School 
Improvement Model) 
 

 Strengthening flood risk 
management and 
preparedness – update on 
implementing 
recommendations. 

 Universal Credit – Welfare 
Rights Service update (tbc) 

 Covid 19 – Further update 
following the update provided 
at the September 2020 
meeting 
 

 February Lancashire schools attainment 
report (standing item) 
Schools causing concern task 
group - update on 
recommendations 

  NHS 111 First – update (tbc) 

 Commissioning Reform (tbc) 

 The Future of Hospital 
Services in Central Lancashire 

 

A
genda P

age 102
A

genda Item
 9



 Task and Finish Group report 
(tbc) 

 March **Family Safeguarding Model – 
update on implementation of 
model in Oct/Nov 2020 
 

  The Future of Hospital 
Services in Central Lancashire 
Task and Finish Group report 
(tbc) 

Youth Employment and 
Skills – impact on youth as one 
of the hardest hit groups 
during the pandemic 
(consideration to be given to 
which scrutiny committee will 
be most relevant to consider 
this topic)  
 

 April **SEND: 
Lancashire Breaktime update 
SEND Accelerated Progress 
Plan update 
Progress update on Pupils in 
special schools with medical 
conditions task group 
recommendations 

Review of Community Safety 
Partnerships Governance 
arrangements 

- Scrutiny of the Council's 
response to the Government's 
call for local councils to invest 
in street safety 
 

      

A
genda P

age 103
A

genda Item
 9



O
th

e
r 

T
o

p
ic

s
 

Topics from 
work 

programmes 
2019/20 not 
scheduled 

Participation strategy update 
Road safety 
Independent children's homes 
Getting to Good plan update 
NEET 
SEN equipment in schools 
School transport 
Maintained nurseries update 
Parking at schools 
Childhood immunisation 
programme 
0-19 Healthy Child programme 
 

Lancashire energy strategy 
Review of Community Safety 
Partnerships and governance 
arrangements (2021 tbc) 
Greater Lancashire plan 
LCC Carbon Plan/Internal 
Energy and Water Management 
Policy 
Canal & Rivers Trust (tbc) 
 
 
LEP – response to the 
pandemic – economic recovery 
plan incorporating 'green' 
principles 
Impact of pandemic on road 
safety and lessons learnt 
 

Urgent Mental Health Pathway 
Transforming Care (Calderstones) 
Social Prescribing 
Tackling period poverty 
Delayed transfers of care 
Stroke Programme 
Vascular, head and neck 
Review of Primary Care Networks 
and Neighbourhoods 
Transforming hospital services 
and care for people in Southport, 
Formby & West Lancs 
Disabled Facilities Grants 
Housing with Care and Support 
Strategy 2018-2025 – tbc 2021 
 
 

Local Government Funding 
and Income Generation Task 
Group 
Update on Reducing Single 
Use Plastics in Lancashire 

 

A
genda P

age 104
A

genda Item
 9


	Agenda
	1 Minutes of meeting Thursday, 1 October 2020 of Overview and Scrutiny Committee
	4 Performance Panel Minutes
	Printed minutes 19112020 1830 Overview and Scrutiny Performance Panel

	5 Executive Cabinet Minutes
	12 11 2020 1830 Executive Cabinet
	15 10 2020 1830 Executive Cabinet

	6 Notice of Executive Decisions
	8 Budget Scrutiny
	9 Health Scrutiny

